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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANITS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Independent Auditors’ Report

THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County of Tazewell, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County of Tazewell, Virginia’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits confained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits
of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of
Virginia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, and each major fund of the County of Tazewell, Virginia, as of
June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the County of Tazewell, Virginia adopted the
provision of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, effective July 1, 2010.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
30, 2011, on our consideration of the County of Tazewell, Virginia’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integrat part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedules of pension
and OPEB funding progress be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
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information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and schedules
of funding progress in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance. The budgetary comparison information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County of Tazewell, Virginia’s financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

K adicnoon,, c;;f/mu., 41 lhaociatee-

Blacksburg, Virginia
December 30, 2011



Tazewell County Board of Supervisors

Tazewell County, Virginia
Dave R. Anderson, Chairman
James H. Spencer III- Ccounty Administrator

D. Michael Hymes, Vice Chairman Seth White
Jim Campbell John Absher

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To the Honorable Members of the
Board of Supervisors

To the Citizens of Tazewell County

County of Tazewell, Virginia

As management of the County of Tazewell, Virginia we offer readers of the County’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the basic audited financial statements.

Financial Highlights:

e The assets of the County’s governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the fiscal year by $19,265,037 (net assets). Of this amount, $10,474,146
was considered unrestricted.

e The assets of the County’s business-type activities exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the fiscal year by $6,698,640 (net assets).

e The assets of the School Board component unit exceeded its liabilities at the close
of the fiscal year by $17,885,974 (net assets). Of this amount $1,148,510 was
considered unrestricted.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the County’s funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $14,680,593. Of the amount $6,953,194 was considered
unassigned, $3,566,771 was considered committed, $4,049,980 was considered
restricted, and $110,648 was considered nonspendable.

e During the year, the County had governmental expenditures that were $2,827,287
more than revenues.

106 East Main Street ' Tazewell, Virginia 246531 - (276)988-1200 - Fax (276)988-4246 -

TbD (276)988-7708
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Overview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements comprise three components:

o (Government-wide financial statements,
e Fund financial statements, and
e Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Govermnment-wide Financial Statements — The Government-wide Financial Statements are
designed to provide the readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the Government-wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). Our governmental activities include general
government, courts, public safety, sanitation, social services, education, cultural events, and
recreation. Qur business-type activities are for waste collection and for public utilities.

The Government-wide Financial Statements include not only the County of Tazewell, Virginia
itself (known as the primary government), but also a Landfill Fund (known as business-type
activities) and a legally separate school board for which the County of Tazewell, Virginia is
financially accountable. The financial statements also include three discretely presented
component units that we do not control, but do exercise a significant financial relationship with.
These include the Public Service Authority, the Industrial Development Authority and the
Tazewell County Airport Authority.

Fund financial statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County
of Tazewell, Virginia, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and



demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. However,
unlike the Government-wide Financial Statements, governmental fund financial statement focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balance of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities,

The County maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, E-911
Fund, Coal Road Improvement Fund, Coal Road Economic Fund, Damage Stamp Fund and the
Law Library Fund, of which the General and Capital Project Funds are considered to be major
funds. Data from the five other non-major governmental funds are combined into a single
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these funds are shown elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its Governmental funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds — The County maintains one proprietary funds; Landfill Fund. This fund
accounts for activities similar to those found in the private sector.

Fiduciary funds — The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the County’s agency funds and
expendable trust funds. We are responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes. All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a
separate statement of fiduciary net assets. The County excludes these activities from the
County’s Government-wide Financial Statements because the County cannot use these assets to
finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements.

Other information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information for budgetary comparison and
presentation of combining financial statements for the discretely presented component units and
the non-major funds.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a County’s financial position. In
the case of the of the County’s Primary Government, assets exceed liabilities by $25,963,677 at
the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the County’s net assets $11,720,686 reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the County’s net
assets $6,399,224 are subject to restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of net assets $7,843,767 may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations.

The following table summarizes the County’s Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities for 2011 and 2010,

Statement of Net Assets

Governmental and
Business-type

Governmental and
Business-type

Activities Activities
2011 2010

Current and other assets 47,795,399 49,984,704
Capital and other assets 24,291,725 24,789,358

Total assets 72,087,124 74,774,062
Current and other liabilities 27,981,810 25,530,086
Long-term liabilities 18,141,637 20,312,604

Total Liabilities 46,123,447 45,842,690
Net assets:

Invested in capital

assets,

net of related debt 11,720,686 10,876,968

Restricted 6,399,224 2,246,010

Unrestricted 7,843,767 15,808,394

Total net assets 25,963,677 28,931,372




Statement of Activities

Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
General revenues
Property taxes
Other taxes
Revenue from use of money and
property
Miscellaneous
Intergovernemental revenues
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs
Total revenues

Expenses
General government
Judicial administration
Public Safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Education
Parks, recreation and cultural
Community development
Interest on debt
Landfill
Total expenses

Change in net assets

Governmental and

Business-type

Governimental and
Business-type

Activities Activities

2011 2010
$ 1,350,543 $ 1,220,845
14,470,285 12,203,375
22,434,132 22,339,123
10,109,122 9,201,493
566,080 496,920
572,960 742,233
3,015,566 2,539,185
52,518,688 48,743,174
5,765,264 4,464,306
2,384,875 2,293,078
12,226,338 12,199,744
5,170,568 5,327,605
7,935,398 6,568,843
12,498,174 10,333,375
913,958 1,278,302
6,706,909 2,176,532
397,317 462,972
1,359,364 1,701,481
55,358,165 46,806,238
$ (2,839,477) $ 1,936,936

At the end of the cwrent fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all
categories of net assets, both for the County as a whole and for its business-type activities.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful

in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular,

unassigned fund balance may

serve as a useful measure of a County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported



combined ending fund balances of $14,680,593. Approximately 1% of this total amount,
$110,648 is nonspendable because some expenses have been prepaid. Approximately 27% of
this total amount, $4,049,980 constitutes restricted fund balance, which is not available for
current spending since it has been restricted by external parties such as grantors, laws or
legislation. Approximately 24% or $3,566,771 has been committed by action of the Board of
Supervisors. The remaining balance, $6,953,194 or 47% is unassigned, meaning there is no
restrictions placed on the funds.

The general fund is the operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, total
fund balance of the general fund was $7,849,173, of this amount $6,953,194 was considered
unassigned, $112,241 was committed, $695,090 was restricted, and $88,648 was nonspendable.
The special revenue funds, at the end of the fiscal year, had a fund balance of $3,478,095 of
which §3,454,530 was considered committed, $1,565 was restricted, and $22,000 was considered
nonspendable, and the County Capital Projects fund had a restricted fund balance of $3,353,325.

Total governmental fund revenues increased $1,641,517 and expenses increased $4,519,146 over
prior year amounts. For fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, expenses exceeded revenues by
$2,827,287, as compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, revenues exceeded expenses by
$50,342.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There were differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for the current
year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental funds and
business-type activitics as of June 30, 2011 amounts to $24,291,725 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, and
machinery and equipment.

Additional information on the County of Tazewell’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this
report.

Long-term debt — At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total debt outstanding as
follows:

Primary Government:

Accrued leave $ 673,307
OPEB obligation 797,400
General obligation bonds 9,443,333
Literary Funds 750,0000
Total $ 11,664,040
Business-type Activities:
Accrued leave $ 50,490
Estimated landfill liability 5,085,137
Notes and bonds 2,377,706
Total $ 7,513,333




Additional information on the County of Tazewell’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 of
this report.

Economic Factors

The June 2011 unemployment rate for the County of Tazewell, Virginia was 6.5%, which is a
decrease from a rate of 6.9% in June 2010. This is slightly above the state’s average
unemployment rate of 6.0% and below the national average rate of 9.2%.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all
those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the County Administrator,
106 East Main Street, Tazewell, Virginia 24651.
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Basic Financial Statements




‘aweie)s syl jo ved [eaSajul UB 81 SJUBWSIRIS jelaLeLy BU) O} S2j0U By )

168°8vg’L  § EvBAVO'EZ S ALL'OBLTLE [ §  LJ9'tE6'SZ § 0p9'869'9 $ £20'59Z°61 ]
800'¢8 SLLLGY0Z eve'LLe 0L5'8PL} 8t (62£'0£9°2) orLpLTOL
- - 092'29 - ¥22'66E'9 LA 08B'640'Y
£POFGL'L  § LEL'9SLE $ 605'9L8'0F § POPLELOL $ 089021t 5L1'646'9 LLE'OYLY 3
GgO'GE S 87192721 § /BC'09E'EE § 0G2'98ECL S lrbeelov $ 601°825°L $ BEL'GEY'RE H
£18'6S £99':09°G1 0B5'C66 62 209'806°F €9 LELRL Z08°501°2 SEL'SEC'LL
ZOE'LL ZHP'E9B SEL'GEL'L £80'v9E 9€4'580°L LEF L0p S0E'a29
- - - - 66¢'022°52 - 864'022'52
- - - 9sL'eL - - -
- - 21€'85 - - - -
- - - 699'01L6 689'0L6
- - - GLOLER'E - - -
- - - - 966°'LE - 966'LE
- ovL'GEE 508'61 - 69'E2! - 568'SZL
- - £9E'491 - - - -
9i£'2 - - L00'L28'E - - -
¥BO'GL $ SEvQgE $ 2Z1L'982°L $ ££9'05L 3 GL0'659 S 9Pl $ BEZ'PrE §
OEEPER L $ 2Z1'6260F § PIS'960°GL $ veLviz0g $  bELA802L £ 6rLOZZ V) § GIE'098'25 §
Ze60LL 9/€662'8 ZBLOvY'G - 956'S12'E YESOVE'E 29¢'298
85281 - L9L'vep 696'vEQ'Z Z96'CISE [SLR:rAl LLB'GRE'Z
- - - BST'LPT'S £rr'coL's - £lr'gsl'e
LE5'664'0 800'0¥+'€2 068°€20'99 289'2L8'EL 9pe'GLE's 22’5646 860°088'L
v8L'22L EEZ'VEL'p 89G°501 - §50'€20'7 865492 0Bt'SEL'L
- - 08419 - YhZ'BFE'T FrE'6rEe -
9t9'e 0£2'9b1 22Lre - 094'98 1£5'92 BZ2'08
¥86 - £69'9p p00'S8E gre'0LL - 9y}
ELO'6L - LiR'eL - - - -
- - - - GL0°1£8°2 - GL0°1E8°T
61E'9 ZEP'PYE LE£°450'L 2v9'8¢8'2 186'191°2 - 1861912
- ££2'995 - - - - -
- - - - 966'LE 966'LE -
- 809'129 - - z90'088 - 2980'08¢
- - - - 900'19L - 900° 194
€662 - YL4'PBS - pSL'SE psL's6 -
- - - - 96€'£95'62 - 96£'€95'62
- SPZ'ZOZ'L - 9LLEL - - -
062'9L $ Z69'PLO'L £ 051'260'L $ LOE'EPE'S £ GiFESYEl § EpL'S9ET § ZELLLL'LL 3
Koy Rjominy KIaung [ELE eIl SIRIATRY
«__Dn_.__d. anmEan@:mQ DB AN [[3elVE 1o wna.wmw:_mﬂm [BIUBLULIBAODY
h—r__._oo [erysnpu]

s3uf) wauodwoy

JUALWIUIACE) Alewlig

$9S8Y ION [R10L
palauISaIun)
pelsMsay

1991 pajelay Jo 18N ‘s1essy [enden Ul paisaay)

S1388Y L3N

Salngery el
JEBA BUQ UBYL B10W Ul ang
223} U UIYIAA ang
SaN|IGEr} Wia)-Buon
BNUBABY paLLEaUN)
S18II0 10} PIFH SlUnoWY
SJURWILIBAQL) BUQ 0] ang
sy pacodwaon o) ang
JuaLILLIBADS) Aleuilld 0} an()
Spun4 Jaylo 01 eng
siqeied 1saseiu|
sysodeq Jawoisng
sabep pansy
apehed SILUNOIDY
S8V

51955y [210L
ss016014 W uogONYsSUOD
wawdnb3z pue Amsuyoew
UOWIWOY) U] ASUBUB
wasig pue Suiping
puen
51988y [BNden
s)uaieganb3 yseD pue ysen
pajosay Augiodway
ISJASEY PajauIsay
safiieys pauajag
sasuadxg pledsiy
fiojuaau|
SIRIMN JUBUOdWDD Wol4 ang
SHUM [IUBWUIRACS JBYIQ W) 8ng)
JuaWLIBAGE) AR W) 8ng
SpUN4 13410 Woly ang
8|0RAIBDAY SION
5304 PUB SAXEL [BO07 JBYIC
S|geAIB03Y SIUNCIY
saxe |

{S2qI0BI|00LN 10} SIUBMDY JO 1ON) S2|GRARITY

S13UIQ 10 Apeisny v yseD
sjuajeanby yseo pue ysey
1358V

L uqux3

LLOZ ‘oE sunp
S]aSSY 19N JO jualwalelg
ejwBaA ‘amaze] jo Ajunon

-1~



JISLIAEIS SiL) JO VR [EA31U] UL BI2 SIIBLUBIES |BISUBLL; AUy} O] SBI0U 8y |,

L59'BPE'L $ £He/reeZ $ JLUBBL )Y S biGCEELL § _ZLB'EB6'SE < Qr95eda S [EQ'SIZ6L H Suipus - 1955y JoN
508'929°2 LT 6£50525E PrSZ0E 81 ¥S1E08'B2 AT 12695622 pajersas 5B ‘BuruiBag - 1958y 18N
ra'LLL $ 022'699'9 $ 920609 sl028'91y) §  (24r'sEg'E) S L1p'Z68 $ (r68169F) H slassy JaN ) efitieyd
SSYPEL $ 1986219 S LEZ9E8 S BEELFYZL & _098'/BTSE T $ 92EGr0SE B SaNUBASY [RIBUSS) [BICL
- - - ~ - BEZT0ED L [CEAENY LNy
- - - - 995'GL0°E - 995'GLOE SWeiBold JPsads O] PRIDUISSY 10U SUOHNGIUDS PUE SUEID)
erLLEt 486'520°9 - PREEL'LL - - - I 05y Aletilig wioJj 5] d
2LLZL - 5L0'ga GEEEGL 038'Z45 SEZT'8E 504'F5S SNoBULBISIY
- €69'66 TISE 022'0Z 080985 5L 190'09¢ Auarold pUE AU JO BN W04 SBNLAARY PRISNISILN
- - - - 0£0'688 - CE0'889 SBXE L SUONBIUNWLIOD |63
- - - - ZES'380'C - 225'950' SOXE| SIUBIBASS [ROLY
- - - - SPE'9LE - SPB'LE SHIAA PUE LONPICISY LD SOXE |
- - - - 1Ly - LEE'LY SBYR] Y3015 Hueg
- - - - BL0'EE - BL0'EE SBSUBDIT BISIYEA JOICH
- - * - GPY'EE - SBY'EE saxe )| asuas] A
- - - - LECBEL LEE'5EL SowE) BSUDII BSIIUSH
N - - - {89'087 - 189'08L sexe] Ajun S1BWnsuoy
- - - - AL1'968' - §1L'866'F S9XT) BS[] Putl SAES [EO07]
S3AEY |23CT BUID
- § - g - § - H TEL'PEr'EZ g - S ZELPEPEZ 4 saxe | Ausdad (B:auag
1SANUaARY [eausg)
[— P cx -
VGE'LE 3 BEGERST S 1GA'196°G § (69e'€0gal) 5 - $ - g - 3 POL 551 $ 8ca'pIv ot $ 0958528 S L62'S00° LG H SN uSLodWoT (ejo)
18872 - - - - - - [EEFAT OEE'ZS 150°90+ 1GZEE9 Kuoyiny wading funen
- 6ER'ERLT - - - - - - £95°851'C £95'901°2 185125°E Ayuoyiny juswdoEAs) [EIsnpu)
- - 158'196'S B - - - ErFrra'L - PEZEI0'S LKIEL'S AuoLIny 9219 Jand
- 5 - g - $(eos'esezl) ¢ - 3 - g - 8 - § LvbISEEY § Zio'9L8 $ £86'160'45 3 pieeg |ooypg
1s}jun uouadwon
- $ - [ 5 - § CECLEoen  Sish o8l AT s S TYSOSE'L S 9L BSLSE ) wawsAeg) A g0
E $ - g - § - §  (GH962) 5{51'960) s - s - 5 BYE'ESS $ pBE'6SE'L s puey
sapAnoYy adAl-ssauisng
- i g - s - s feeirees) 8 - S (ZZZ' 1P 8E) s - $ 88204Vt § b6E I8 % LU8'GEB'ES S SAANIY |EJUBLILLBADD [B10)
- - : - {21€°168) B {Z1g"26€} - B - ILEI6E 1sanapu
- - - - {595'096'F) - (595096 - PrEarLL - 606'902'9 aldganag] Aunwwog
- - - - eicos9) - (o1E'059) - 087061 BGLEL HSEELE {RINYND QUE UOREIIDY *SHEA
- - - - (e L'98Y'2L) - (p21'960'2H) - - - vLLVIBF T uolesnpy
- - - - {gi2'1ar'e) - (871802 - DZL' PSP - H6C'SE6'L aiepapy PUe e
- - - - {atb'L26'F) - (arv'2i6'P) - L2501 665281 895041’ SHI0A Blfng
- - - - {ra6'2gp°L) - (roa's9p'e) - 2T IPE'Y 9609 BEC'9RRE TN Aiajeg ayqng
- - - - (59Z'5LL'L) - (g9z'gLL1) - Log'pLLE 608'+6 S8'VEE'T LOREAISIIPY [Bpar
N $ - $ - g - §  (106'181'Y) s - $ (106 LEL'Y) s - § LE2'T5E'L § ZEY0L & pessL's § UCHENSILALDY JUSWLISAOE) (13035
SHYAIDY [BIUSILIBACD
SLNIWNYIAODD AUVt
WSqEY aroginy mogmny LI mol AT SETRSY SUGRAGHII0) STB|EGEUED §U9AIeg 10} Bo8uog
podiy uatudoloasg LLIREST [LETTETS oadA-ssausng 1PJUALNLIIACD) puE spURI PUE SJUBIS soBieysy
Aunog |ejsnpu| o(1qng |eyden Bunersdg
sun weuedoy JUBUILISAO D AdBwd
BI0SE6Y JaN Ul S0BUELTy sonuoaoy wesBoag

pUE 2nusavy (esuedxz) jaN

LLOZ ‘0E aunp papug 1ea 1e9s)d ayg Jod
SO[ADY JO JuBLIBLES
elujbiA ‘lramezey jo fjunoy
zuanxg

-12-



County of Tazewell, Virginia

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011

Exhibit 3

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles):

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Notes Receivable
Prepaids
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governmental Units
Due from Component Units

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Due to Other Funds
Due to Component Unit
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nenspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

County CIP Other

General Fund Governmentaj Total
3 4,191,808 § 3,810,558 3,115,276 § 11,117,732
25,225 854 - 357,544 25,583,308
493,517 - 1,500 495,017
- 330,062 - 330,082
88,648 - 22,000 110,648
- 125,000 - 125,000
2,152,359 - 9,622 2,161,881
2,831,075 - - 2,831,075
$ 34983351 % 4,265,620 3,505,942 § 42,754,913
& 614,766 $ 1,626 27,847 % 644,239
31,996 - - 31,906
125,000 910,669 - 1,035,669
26,362,416 - - 26,362,416
$ 27134178 % 912,295 27847 § 28,074,320
3 88,648 § - 22,000 & 110,648
695,090 3,353,325 1,565 4,049,980
112,241 - 3,454,530 3,566,771
6,953,194 - - 6,953,194
7,849,173 3 3,353,325 3,478,095 & 14,680,593
$ 34983351 § 4,265,620 3505942 § 42,754,913

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4
County of Tazewell, Virginia
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Total fund balances per Exhibit 3 - Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds S 14,680,593
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 14,834,244
Other long-term assets are not available fo pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,407,906
Long-term liabilites, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (11,757,706)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 19,265,037

The notes to the financial staiements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Tazewel, Virginia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 5

REVENUES
General Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Permits, Privilege Fees and Reguiatory Licenses
Fines and Forfeitures
Revenue fram Use of Money and Property
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Costs
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Commonwealth
Federal Government
Total Reventtes

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government Administration
Judiciat Administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Education
Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Community Development
Non-Deparimental
Capitai Projects
Bebt Service:
Principal Retirement
interest and Other Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

General County Other Govern-

Fund CIP Fund mental Funds Total
22,580,736 % - 3% - 22,580,736
7,871,832 - 2,237,290 10,109,122

387,173 - - 387,173

36,612 - - 36,612

566,042 19 - 566,061

348,238 - 15,271 363,509

288,716 - - 288,716

196,560 - - 196,560
10,607,148 1,741,206 368,390 12,716,744
4,372,551 41,493 355,063 4,769,107
47,255,608 % 1,782,718 § 2,976,014 52,014,340
5,079,097 $ -8 - 5,079,097
2,332,856 - 1,200 2,334,056
11,081,377 - 1,448,150 12,529,527
3,762,953 787,671 629,311 5,179,935
7,902,900 - - 7,802,900
11,733,844 - 11,733,844
1,227,381 - - 1,227,381

678,047 5,981,952 - 6,659,859

728,594 - - 728,594

8,000 224 855 - 232,855

764,330 - - 764,330

469,109 - - 469,109
45,768,488 § 6,994,478 § 2,078,661 54,841,627
1,487,120 § (5,211,760) % 897,353 (2,827,287}

-8 500,000 % 116,358 618,356
(2,230,719) {15,895) - (2,246,614)
(2,230,711 § 484105 § 116,356 (1,630,258)

(743,599) § (4,727,655) § 1,013,709 (4,457 ,545)
8,592,772 8,080,980 2,464 386 19,138,138
7.845,173 § 3,353,325 § 3,478,095 14,680,533

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Tazewell, Virginia

Exhibit 6

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are

different because:

Net changes in fund balance - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense., This is the
amount by which the capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither fransaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amoriized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the effect
of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ (4,457,545)

{13,251)

119,385

784,330
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Statement of Net Asseis
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2011

Exhibit 7

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Due from Other Funds
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
Total Capital Assets

Other Assets:
Restricted Cash
Deferred Charges
Total Cther Assels

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued Leave
Estimated Landfill Closure Liability
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Debt
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for Other Purposes

Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tazewell
County
Landfill

Fund
$ 2,365,743
95,754
31,896
3 2,493,493
3 287,598
2,346,584
6,723,289
5 0357481
$ 2,340,244
26,531
$ 2375775
$ 14,226,749
$ 14,776
407,431
$ 422,207
$ 50,490
5,085,137
1,970,275
$ 7105902
$ 7528109
$ 6,979,775
2,349,244
(2,.630,379)
$ 6,698,640



Exhibit 8
County of Tazewell, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Tazewell
County
Landfill
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 3 563,249
Total Operating Revenues $ 563,249
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Service $ 245,062
Employee Benefits 129,625
Contractual Services 132,152
Repairs and Maintenance 264,276
Closure Reserve Expense 43,150
Other Charges 67,995
Depreciation and Amortization 356,163
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,238,323
Operating Income (Loss) $ (675074)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Earned 3 19
Interest Expense {118,545)
Miscellaneous Income 18,255
Miscellaneous Expense (2,4986)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 3 (102,767}
Net Transfers 3 1,630,258
Increase {Decrease) in Net Assets $ 852,417
Net Assets - Beginning, as restated 5,846,223
Net Assets - Ending $ 6,698,640

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 9
County of Tazewell, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Tazewell
County
Landfill
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 3 579,673
Payments to employees for services (388,222)
Payments for operating expenses {659,910)
Total cash provided {used) by operating activities $ {468,459)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income $ 19
Total cash provided (used) by investing activities 3 19
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfers from Other Funds $ 1,630,258
Other Income {Expense) 15,759
Total cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities 3 1,646,017
CASH FLLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Principal Payments on Debt $ (569,948)
Interest Paymenis on Debt {109,065}
Total cash provided (used) by capital financing activities 3 {679,011}
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ) 498,566
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning $ 4,216,421
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending (including restricted) 3 4,714,987
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) $ (675,074)
Depreciation 356,163
Estimated Landfill Closure Costs 43,150
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income {Loss) to Net Cash
Provided {used) by Operating Activities:
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 12,410
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds 4,014
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (195,487}
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave {13,635)
Total Adjustments 3 {192,698}
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3 (468,459)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011

Exhibit 10

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Due from Other Governmental Units
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Due to Primary Government
Due to Other Governmental Units
Amounts Held for Others
Total Liabilities

Agency
Funds

39,873
2,253,505
1,008,022

3,301,400

854,600
153,422
2,293,378

$

3,301,400

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

-20-



COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The County of Tazewell, Virginia is governed by an elected five member Board of Supervisors. The Board of
Supervisors is responsible for appointing the County Administrator. The County provides a full range of services for its
citizens. These services include police and volunteer fire protection, sanitation services, recreational activities, cultural
events, education and social services.

The financial statements of the County of Tazewell, Virginia have been prepared in conformity with the specifications
promulgated by the Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The significant accounting policies are described below.

Financial Statement Presentation

Management's Discussion and Analysis — GASB Statement No. 34 requires the financial statements be accompanied
by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities in the form of “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A).

Govermment-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements — The reporting model includes financial statements prepared using full accrual
accounting for all of the government's activities. This approach includes not just current assets and liabilities but also
capital assets and long-term liabiliies {such as buildings and general obligation debt).

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its components units. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component unifs for which the primary government is financially accountable.

Statement of Net Assets — The Statement of Net Assets is designed to display financial position of the primary
government (government and business-type activities) and its discretely presented component units. Govemments will
report all capital assets in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and will report depreciation expense — the cost
of “using up” capital assets - in the Statement of Activities. The net assets of a government will be broken down into
three categories: 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 36, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Statement of Activities — The government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and revenues in a format that
focuses on the cost of each of the government's functions. The expense of individual functions is compared to the
revenues generated directly by the function (for instance, through user charges or intergovernmental grants).

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segments are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the governmental-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and maijor individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial staiements.

Budqetary comparison schedules — Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budget is an important component of a
government's accountability fo the public. Many citizens pariicipate, in one way or another, in the process of
establishing the annual operating budgets of state and local governments, and have a keen interest in following the
actual financial progress of their government over the course of the year. Many governments revise their original
budgets over the course of the year for a variety of reasons. Under the GASB 34 reporting model, governments
provide budgetary comparison information in their annual reports, including the original budget, and a comparison of
final budget and actual results.

A, Financial Reporting Entity

The basic criterion for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commission,
public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a primary governmental unit's
reporting entity for basic financial statements is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes the
appointment of a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and the ability of the primary
govemnment to impose its will on the organization, or if there is a financial benefittburden relationship. In
addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary govemment should be included in its
reporting entity. These financial statements present the County of Tazewell, Virginia (the primary government)
and its component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the government’s operations. Therefore data from these units is combined with data of the primary
government. Each discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column
in the combined financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

B. Individual Component Unit Disclosures

Blended Component Units: None

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

B.

Individual Component Unit Disclosures {Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Tazewell County School Board members are elected by the voters and are responsible for the operations of
the County’s School System. The School Board is fiscally dependent on the County. The County has the
ability to approve its budget and any amendments. The primary funding is from the General Fund of the
County. The School Fund does not issue a separate financial report. The financial statements of the School
Board are presented as a discrete preseniation in the County financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011.

Tazewell County Indusirial Development Authority is authorized to acquire, own, lease and dispose of
properties to the end that such activities may promote industry and develop trade by inducing enterprises to
locate and remain in Tazewell County. Tazewell County Board of Supervisors appoints all Board members of
the Authority. There exists a financial benefittburden relationship between the Industrial Development
Authority and the County.

Tazewell County Airport Authority was created by the County of Tazewell and the Towns of Bluefield, Cedar
Bluff, Pocahontas, Richlands and Tazewell to operate a regional airport. Tazewell County Board of
Supervisors appoints a voting majority of the Airport Commission's Board of Directors, The County
contributes a significant amount to the Commission's operation and there exists a financial benefit/burden
relationship.

Tazewell County Public Service Authority was created by the Board of Supervisors of Tazewell County fo
acquire, finance, construct and operate water and sewer systems throughout the County. The Board of
Directors of the Public Service Authority are appointed by the Tazewell County Board of Supervisors and there
exists a financial benefi/burden relationship between the Public Service Authority and the County. In addition,
a majority of the Directors of the Autharity are also on the Board of Supervisors.

Complete financial statements of the Tazewell County Public Service Authority, Tazewell County Industrial
Development Authority and the Tazewell County Airport Authority can be obtained from the business office of
each component unit,

Cther Related Organizations Included in the County’s Annual Financial Report

None

Jointly Governed Organizations

The County of Tazewell and the Counties of Buchanan and Russell participate in supporting the Cumberland
Mountain Community Services Board. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the County contributed $60,000.

The County of Tazewell and the Counties of Russell, Buchanan, Wise, Scott, Lee, Washington, Smyth and
Dickenson and the Cities of Norton and Bristol participate in supporting the Appalachian Juvenile Commission.
For the year ended June 30, 2011, the County contributed $407,000.

The County of Tazewell and the Counties of Lee, Wise, Washington, Russell, Smyth, Buchanan and

Dickenson along with the City of Norfon participate in supporting the Southwest Virginia Regional Jait
Authority. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the County contributed $3,402,639.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The principles prescribed by GASB represent generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to governmental units.

The County applies all GASB pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued on or before December 1, 1989 uniess these pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

The government-wide statement of activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional category
{public safety, public works, health and welfare, etc.) which are otherwise being supported by general
government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and
charges, efc.). The statement of activities reduces gross expenses {including depreciation) by related
program revenues, operating and capital grants, and contributions. The program revenues must be directly
associated with the function (public safety, public works, health and welfare, etc.) or a business-type activity.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The County's proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets {or
cost recovery), financial position and cash flows. All assets and liabilities, whether current or noncurrent,
associated with their aciivities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assefs. Proprietary
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The County's fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type. Since by definition these

assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address acivities or obligations of
the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, financial fransactions and accounts of the County are organized on the basis
of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting
entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash andfor other financial resources together with all
related liabilities and residual equities or balances and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose
of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations,
restrictions, or limitations.

The government reports the folfowing major governmental funds.

a.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operafing fund of the County. This fund is used to account for all
financial transactions and resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Revenues are derived primarily from property and other local taxes, state and federal distributions,
licenses, permits, charges for service, and interest income.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund (Capital Improvements) accounts for and reports financial resources that
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, except for those financed by
proprietary funds or for assets held in frust for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments,

Additionally, Tazewell County reports the following fund types:

C.

Proprietary Funds

The Proprietary Funds are accounted and financed in a manner similar to private business. The
funds utilize accrual basis of accounting, in which revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

School Construction Fund

The School Construction Fund, a non-major fund, accounts for and reports financial resources that
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, except for those financed by
proprietary funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments,

Special Revenue Funds
Special Revenue Funds account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital

projects. The E-911 Fund, Coal Road Improvement Fund, The Coal Road Economic Fund, The
Damage Stamp Fund, and The Law Library Fund are reported as non-major special revenue funds.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation {Continued)

f. Fiduciary Funds (Trust and Agency Funds)

Fiduciary, Trust and Agency funds account for assets held by the County unit in a trustee capacity or
as an agent or custodian for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other
funds. These funds include Agency Funds and they utilize the modified accrual basis of accounting
described in the Governmental Fund Presentation. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
government-wide financial statements.

Budget and Budgetary Accounting

The following procedures are used by the County in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to March 30, the County Administrator submits to the Board of Supervisors a proposed

operating and capital budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating and

capital budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resolution.

The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the departmental level.

The appropriation for each depariment or category can be revised only by the Board of Supervisors.

The County Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within general government

departments. However the School Board is authorized to transfer budgeted amount within the school

system’s categories.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the

General Fund, School Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Appropriations lapse on June 30, for all County units. Several supplemental appropriations were

necessary during the year and at year-end.

8. All budgetary data presented in the accompanying financial statements is the original o the current
comparison of the final budget and actual results.

halh el

~Ne

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. State statutes
authorize the County government and the School Board to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury,
commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, and the Local Government Investment Pool.
The local Government Investment Poot operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations.
The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

Investments
Investments are stated at fair value which approximates market; no investments are valued at cost.

Certificates of deposit and short-term repurchase agreements are reported in the accompanying financial
statements as cash and cash equivalents. Investments consist of assets held by a trustee.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: {Continued)

G. Receivable and payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year is referred to as either “due toffrom other funds’”.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical
collection data and, in certain cases, specific account analysis. The allowance amounted to approximately
$854,099 at June 30, 2011 and is comprised solely of property taxes.

Property is assessed at its value on January 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
January 1. Taxes are payable December 5. The County bilis and collects its own property taxes.

H. Capital Asseis

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the County as land, buildings, road registered vehicles, and equipment with an estimated useful life in excess
of one year and a cost of over $5,000. Such asseis are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assefs lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets construcied.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Buildings 40-60
Building improvements 40-60
Vehicles 5
Office and computer equipment 7
Other equipment 7

3 Compensated Absences

Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported as an expense in the statement of aclivities and a long-ferm
obligation in the Statement of Net Assets. In accordance with the provisions of Government Accounting
Standards No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating
rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulating sick leave
benefits that it is estimated will be taken as “terminal leave” prior fo retirement.

-97-



COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

J.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statement, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued and premiums on issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. lIssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Retirement Plan

Retirement plan contributions are actuarially determined and consist of current services costs and amortization
of prior service cost over a 30-year period. The County's policy is to fund pension costs as it accrues.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fund Equity

Fund balances, presented in the governmental fund financial statements, represent the difference between
assets and liabilities reported in a governmental fund. GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined
classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental funds. This new standard (implemented in 2011) has
not affected the total amount of reported fund balances but has substantially changed the categories and
terminology used to describe their components. GASB Statement No. 54 requires that fund balances be
classified info categories based upon the type of restrictions imposed on the use of funds. The County of
Tazewell, Virginia evaluated its funds at June 30, 2011 and classified fund balance info the following five
categories:

Non-spendable -items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid
items and inventory.

Restricted -items that are restricted by external parties such as creditors or imposed by grants, law or
legislation

Committed -items that have been committed by formal action by the enfity's "highest level of
decision-making authority”; which the County of Tazewell, Virginia considers to be the Board of
Directors.

Assigned -items that have been allocated by committee action where the government's intent is to

use the funds for a specific purpose. The County of Tazewell, Virginia considers this level of authority
to be the Board of Directors or any Committee granted such authority by the Board of Directors.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

M. Fund Equity (Continued)

Unassigned -this category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them.

The County's highest decision-making level is the Board of Supervisors. Action from the Board of Supervisors
is required to commit or release funds from commitment.

The County's Board of Supervisors has authorized the County Administrator to assign fund balance to a
specific purpose as approved within the County fund balance policy.

The County considers resfricted fund balance to be spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for
which restricted and unassigned, assigned, or committed fund balances are available, unless prohibited by
legal documents or confracts. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned or
unassigned amounts are available, the County considers committed fund balance to be spent first, then
assigned fund balance, and lastly unassigned fund balance.

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
M. Fund Equity (Continued)

The details of governmental fund balances, as presented in aggregate on Exhibit 3, are as follows:

General Fund

Nonspendable for:
Prepaids $ 88,648
Resfricted for:
Law Enforcement 695,080
Committed for:
Recreaton 112,241
Unassigned 6,953,194
Tokal General Fund $ 7,849,173
County CIP Fund
Restricied for:
Capital Improvements $ 3,353,325
Other Governmental
Nonspendable:
Special Revenue:
E-911 Fund
Prepaids $ 22,000
Restricted:

Special Revenue:
School Construction Fund

Capital Improvements $ 1,565
Commited for:
Special Revenue:
Law Library Fund $ 89,837
Coal Road Improvement Fund 2,216,165
Coal Road Economic Development Fund 124,227
E-911 Fund 1,068,259
Damage Stamp Fund 42
Tofal Commited for $ 3,498,530
Total Oher Governmental $ 3,522,005

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 2 — Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net assets:

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds
and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One elemen
of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. The details of these ($11,757,706) and ($5,272,665)
differences for the primary government and discretely presented component unit, respectively, are as follows:

Component
Primary Unit
Government School Board

Bonds payable $ (9,278,765) $

Literary loans payable {750,000)

Leases payable - {4,357,065)
Premium on bond {164,568) -
Bond issuance costs 30,229

Accrued interest payable {123,895) -
OPEB Obligation (797,400) {915,600)
Compensated absences (673,307) -

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental funds
to arrive at net assets-governmental activities $  (11,757,706) $ (5,272,665)

Ancther element of that reconciliation explains that "Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds”. The details of this $1,407,906 difference for the
primary government are as follows:

Primary
Government
Uneamed revenue $ 1,141,917
Local Sales Tax Receivable 265,989
Net adjustment to increase fund balance-total governmental
funds to arrive at net assets-governmental activities $ 1.407 906
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 201

Note 2 — Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities:

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between nef changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net assels of
governmental activiies as reported in the govemment-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains, “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation

expense.” The details of these ($13,251) and ($532,083) differences for the primary government and discretely
presented compenent unit, respectively, are as follows:

Component
Primary Unit
Gaovernment School Board

Capital outlays $ 1,542,773 § 523,879
Disposal of assets (464) -
Depreciation expenses (791,230) (1,820,292)
Debt free asset transfers (764,330) 764,330
Net adjustment to increase (decrease) net changes in

fund balances - ltotal governmenial funds to arrive at

changes in net assets of governmenial activities $ (13,251) § (532,083)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "Revenues in the Statement of Activifies that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds”. The details of this $119,385 diiference for
the primary government are as follows:

Primary
Government
Unearned revenue $ {146,604)
Local sales tax receivable 265,989
Net adjustment to increase (decrease) net changes in
fund balances - total government funds to arrive at
changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 119,385
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

B.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the govemment-wide statement of activities: (Continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of
these $764,330 and $437,062 differences in the primary government and discretely presented component unit,
respectively, are as follows:

Component
Primary Unit
Government School Board
Principal repayments:
General obligation debt $ 637,330 § -
Literary loans 127,000 -
Leases - 437,062
Net adjustment to increase (decrease) nef changes in fund
balances-total governmental funds to arrive at changes in
net assets of governmental activities $ 764,330 $ 437 062

Another element of that reconciliation states, “Some expenses reported in the statement of activifies do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The

details of these ($104,813) and ($244,300) differences in the primary government and discretely presented
component unit, respectively, are as follows:

Component
Primary Unit School
Government Board
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences s 89,095 § -
{Increase) decrease in accrued interest 64,721 -
(Increase) decrease in OPEB obligation (265,700) (244,300)
Amortization of bond premium 8,662 -
Amortization of bond issuance costs {1,591) -
Net adjustment to increase (decrease) net changes in fund
balances-total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities $ (104,813) § (244,300)
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 3 — Deposits and Investments:

Deposits — Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized in
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the "Act”) Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of
Virginia . Under the Act, banks and savings instituions holding public deposits in excess of the amount insured by the
FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. Financial Institutions may choose
between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the
amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly, all deposits are considered fully collateralized

Investments - Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of the United States
or agencies thereof, abligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereoi, obligations of the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (World Bank) and Asian Development Bank, the African
Development Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper and certain corporate notes, banker's accepiances, repurchase
agreements and the State Treasurer's Local Government investment Pool {LGIP).

Custodial Credit Risk {Investments)

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover
the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Neither the County
nor its discretely presented component units have an investment policy for custodial credit risk. The County's only
investments consisted of the State's Non-Arbitrage Poal (SNAP), which is an open-end management investment
company registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) and is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

The County’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2011, were rated by Standard and Poor's and the ratings are
presented beiow using Standard and Poor’s rating scale.

County's Rated Debt Investments' Values

Rated Debt Investments Fair Quality Ratings
AAAM
SNAP $ 444

Concentration of Credit Risk

At June 30, 2011, the County did not have any investments meeting the GASB 40 definition requiring concentration of
credit risk disclosures that exceeded 5% of total investments.

Interest Rate Risk

At June 30, 2011, the County did not have any investments meeting the GASB 40 definition requiring interest rate risk
disclosures.

The State Non-Arbitrage Pool {SNAP) is an open-end management investment company registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC).
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 4 — Due To/From Primary Governmen{/Component Units;

Interfund interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General $ 2,831,075 $ 942 665
Enterprise Fund 31,996 -
School . 2,831,075
Component Unit IDA 910,669 -
Totals $ 3,773,740 $ 3,773,740

Note 5 — Due From Other Governmental Units:

At June 30, 2011, the County, School Board and component units had receivables from other governments as follows:

Discretely Discretely Discretely
Presented Presented Presented
Public Component Component Component
Primary Service Unit Unit Unit
Government Authority School Board Airport IDA

Local Government:

Southwest Virginia Regional Jail $ 48300 § -8 - § - §

Town of Tazewell - 59,765
Commonwealth of Virginia:

State sales taxes - 867,015

Local sales taxes 854,600 -

VPA 215,810 - - -

CSA 275,768 - - -

Shared expenses 265,621 . ) . .

Categorical aid 132,542 180,689 - - 344 432

Noncategorical aid 137,539 - - - .
Federal Government:

VPA 231,201 - - -

Categorical aid - 816,883 1,971,633 6,318 -

Total $ 2,161,981 $ 1,057,337 $ 2,838,648 $ 6,319 $ 344432
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 6 — Capital Assets:
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:

General Government:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Govemmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 1,735,460 $ - % - § 1,735,460

Construction in progress 196,582 670,780 - 867,362

Tenancy in Common 8,929,743 - (764,330} 8,165,413
Total capital assets not being

depreciated $ 10,861,785 § 670,780 $  (764,330) $ 10,768,235
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings $ 3517401 § 153,969 § - 3 3,671,370

Machinery and equipment 11,238,593 718,024 {334,860) 11,622,757
Total capital assets being

depreciated $ 14,756,994 § 871993 $  (334860) § 15294127
Less: accumulated depreciation for;

Buildings $  (1,702,178) § (89,094) $ - % (1,791,272

Machinery and equipment (8,969,106) {702,136) 334,396 (9,336,846)
Total accumulated depreciation $ (10,671,284) § (791,230) $ 334,396 § (11,128,118)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net $ 4085710 § 80,763 $ (464) §$ 4,166,009
Governmental activities capital

assets, net $ 14947495 § 751,543 §  (764,794) $ 14,934,244

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011
Note 6 — Capital Assets: {Continued)
Proprietary Funds:
Tazewell County Public Service Authority:
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land and land rights 5 105,668 $ - 3 -5 105,668

Construction in progress 3,101,421 9,578,366 (7,239,605) 5,440,182
Total capital assets not being

depreciated $ 3,207,088 § 9578366 $  (7,239,605) $ 5,545,850
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Infrastructure $ 81853147 $ 7298752 § - § 89,151,899

Machinery and equipment 3,084,683 30,659 - 3,115,342
Total capital assets being

depreciated $ 84937830 § 7329411 § - § 92,267,241
Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure $ (21,330512) § (1,797497) § - § (23,128,009)

Machinery and equipment (2,390,621) (230,560) - (2,621,181)
Total accumulated depreciation $ (23,721133) § (2028,057) § - § (25,749,190
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net $ 61216697 § 5301354 § - § 66,518,051
Business-type activities capital

assets, net $ 64423786 $ 14879720 $§  (7.239605) § 72,063,901
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011
Note 6 — Capital Assets: (Continued)
Tazewell County Landfill Fund:
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 287,598 § - § 287,598

Construction in progress 2,346,594 2,346,534
Total capital assets not being

depreciated $ 2634192 § - § - 2,634,192
Capital asseis, being depreciated:

Buildings $ 185,603 3 -3 - 185,603

Land improvements 7,041,846 - - 7,041,846

Machinery and equipment 2,964,746 - - 2,964,748
Total capital assets being

depreciated $ 10192195 § - $ - 10,192,195
Less: accurnulated depreciation for:

Buildings h (115,597) § (6,187) $ - (121,784)

Land Improvemenis (1,478,716} (131,701} - (1,610,417)

Machinery and equipment {1,518,430) {218,275) (1,736,705)
Total accumulated depreciation $ (3,112,743) $  (356,163) $ (3,468,906)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net $ 7079452 §  (356,163) § 6,723,289
Business-type activities capital

assets, net $ 9713644 § (356,163) $ 9,357 481
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 6 - Capital Assets; (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Parks, recreation, and culture
Community development

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities
Business-type activities:

Utility fund

Landfill fund

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.

-30-

$

$

146,909
16,865
422,970
111,631
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791,230
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

Note 6 — Capital Assets: (Continued)

Component Unit Scheol Board:

Governmental Activities;

Capital assets, not being depreciafed:
Tenancy in Common (1)

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: accumulated depreciation far:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total accumutated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital
assets, net

$

w3

$

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance

4482928 § 764,330 § - $ 5,247,258
4482926 § 764,330 § - 3 5,247,258
31,338,402 $ 418,840 § - § 31,758,242
14,626,557 105,039 (47,575} 14,684,021
45965,959 % 523879 § (47,575) § 46,442,263

(16,865,772) $
(11,956,503)

(1,079,788) $
(740,504)

- $  (17.945,560)
AT5T5  (12,649,432)

(28,822,275) $

(1,820,292) §

47575 §  (30,594,992)

17,143,684 §

(1,206413) $

- § 15,847,271

21,626612 §

(532,083) $

- § 21,094,529

{1) Legislation enacted during the year ended June 30, 2003, Section 15.2-1800.1 of the Code of Virginia, {1950), as
amended, has changed the reporting of local school capital assets and related debt for financial statement purposes.
Historically, debt incurred by local governments “on behalf’ of school boards was reported in the school board's
discrete column along with the related capital assets. Under the new law, local governments have a “tenancy in
common” with the school board whenever the locality incurs any financial obligation for any school property which is
payable over more than one fiscal year. For financial reporting purposes, the legistation permits the locality to report
the portion of school property related to any ouistanding financial obligation eliminating any potential deficit from
capitalizing assets financed with debt. The efiect on the County of Tazewell, Virginia for the year ended June 30, 2011,
is that assets and debt in the amount of 8,165,413 have been transferred fo the primary Government from the
Component Unit School Board for financial reporting purposes.



COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 36, 2011
Note 6 ~ Capital Assets: (Continued)
Other Component Units:
Tazewell County Airport:
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assefs, not being depreciated:

Land $ 722194 § - % - $ 722,194

Construction in progress 1,493,281 553,460 (1,935,819) 110,922
Total capital assets not being

depreciated $ 2215475 § 553460 $ (1,935819) § 833,116
Capital assels, being depreciated:

Buildings $ 796,061 § 18,425 § - § 814,486

Land improvements 9,933,914 1,935,818 - 11,869,733

Machinery and equipment 455,988 6,000 - 461,988
Total capital assets being

depreciated $ 11185963 $§ 1,960,244 § $ 13,146,207
Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings $ (557,281) $ (13,708) §$ - § (570,989)

Land Improvements (4,953,894) (359,799) - {5,313,693)

Machinery and equipment (263,718) (10,692) - (274,410)
Total accumulated depreciafion $ (5774893) § (384,199) § - $ (6,159,002)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net $ 5411070 § 1,576,045 $ - % 6987115
Business-type activities capital

assets, net $ 7626545 § 2129505 $ (1,935819) § 7,820,231
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 6 - Capital Assets: (Continued)
Other Compenent Units: (Continued)

Industrial Development Authority:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type Aclivities,
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land § 4494293 § - % - % 4494293
Construction in progress 2,509,127 5,140,249 - 8,739,376
Total capital assets not being
depreciated $ 7093420 $§ 6,140,249 § - § 13,233,669
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements $ 28982010 % 31300 § - $ 28,013,310
Total capital assets being
depreciated § 28082010 § 31,300 § - $ 29,013,310
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
L and Improvements $ (4,836,597) (736,705) $ - § (5573302
Total accumulated depreciation $ ({4836597) § (736,705) $ - 5 (5573,302)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net $ 24145413 § (705,405) § - § 23,440,008

Business-type acfivities capital
assets, net $ 31238833 § 5434844 § - & 36,673,677

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 - Long-term Obligations:

Primary Government;

The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the County for the year ended June 30, 2011:

General Long-Term Obligations:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 lssuances Retirements June 30, 2011

General Cbligation
Bonds $ 9916,095 $ - (637,330) % 9,278,765
Premium on bond 173,230 - (8,662) 164,568
Literary locans 877,000 - (127,000) 750,000
OPERB Obligation 531,700 594,000 (328,300) 797,400
Compensated absences 762402 - {89,095) 673,307
Total $ 12,260,427 § 594,000 $  (1,190,387) § 11,664,040

Annual amounts required to amortize long-term debt and related interest are as follows:

General Government Debt

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Literary Fund Loans
June 30 Principal interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 553,305 § 451,837 $ 75,000 $ 15,000
2013 459,862 425,568 75,000 13,500
2014 467,407 405,570 75,000 12,000
2015 460,798 384,846 75,000 10,500
2016 469,334 364,103 75,000 9,000
2017-2021 2,513,819 1,455,148 375,000 22,500
2022-2026 2,696,667 766,193 -
2027-2029 1,657,573 127,030 -
$ 9,278,765 $ 4,380,295 §$ 750,000 $ 82,500

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 201

Note 7 - Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Primary Government: (Continued)

Details of Long-Term Indebtedness:

General Obligation Bonds:

GO Bond

GO Bond

GO Bond

GO Bond

GO Bond

GO Bond

Subtotal GO Bond
Add:

Premium on Bond

Total GO Bonds

Literary Loans:
State Literary Loan

Total Literary Loans

Other Obligations:
OPEB Obligation
Compensated Absences

Total Other Obligations

Total Long-term debt

Final Amount of Balance Amount
Interest Issue Maturity Original Governmental  Due Within
Rates Dates Date Issue Activities One Year
4.90-6.35% 81201992 7152012 § 575066 $§ 12,289 $ 12,289
6.10% 11111933 1215/2013 2,100,000 45,000 25,000
5.64-7.09% 12/15/1994 12/115/2011 2,555,000 75,000 75,000
3.10-5.10% 5/15/2002 711512023 1,900,000 1,240,204 95,000
4.10-5.10% 5/15/2008 711512028 1,880,000 1,765,000 60,000
3.60-5.35% 12/11/2008 111512029 6,698,941 6,141,272 286016
$ 9278765 $ 553,305

nfa nfa nfa n/a 164,568
$ 9443333 $ 553,305
2.00% 87112000 81172020 $ 1,500,000 % 750,000 § 75,000
$ 750,000 $ 75,000
nfa nfa nfa n/a 5 797400 % -
na nla n/a nfa 673,307 -
$ 1470707 $ -
$ 11,664,040 $ 628,305

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.




COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 — Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Business-type Activities:

Landfill Fund

General Obligation
Bonds

Loan premiums

Loss on redemption

Notes payable

Landfill closuref

postclosure liability
Compensated absences

Total

$

$

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Issuances Retirements June 30, 2011
2,860,000 $ $ (505,000) % 2,355,000
8,012 (744) 7,268
(9,324) 2,331 (6,993)
87,377 (64,946) 22431
5,041,987 43,150 - 5,085,137
64,125 {13,635) 50,490
8,052177 § 43150 § (681,994) § 7,513,333

Annual reguirements to amortize long-term debt and related interest are as follows:

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Notes Payable

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 385,000 % 86,244 $ 22431 % 247
2013 400,000 71,908 -
2014 245,000 56,985
2015 255,000 48,035
2016 265,000 38,465

2017-2020 805,000 70,454

Totals

$ 2355000 §$ 372,091

-45-
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 201
Note 7 - Long-term Obligafions: {Continued)
Business-type Activities: {Continued)
Details of Long-Term Debt:
Final Amount of Balance Amount
Interest Issue Maturity Original Business-type  Due Within
Rates Dates Date Issue Activities One Year
Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds 3.50% 11/13/2002 512013 § 1,385,000 $ 315,000 $ 155,000
Revenue Bonds 3.4-481%  11/2712007 101112019 2,675,000 2,040,000 230,000
Total Revenue Bonds $ 2,355,000 §$ 385,000
Notes Payable
Equipment Loan 5.35% 9/1/2006 92011 § 206,901 § 22431 § 2243
Other Obligations:
Compensated Absences nfa nfa n/a nla $ 50490 $ -
Loan Premiums nfa nfa nfa nfa 7,268
Loss on Redemption nfa nfa nfa n/a (6,993)
Landfill closure/
postclosure liability nfa nfa n/a n/a 5,085,137
Total Other Obligations $ 5135902 $

Total Long-term Debt

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 ~ Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Business-type Activities: (Continued)

Tazewell County Public Service Authority

Annual requirements to amortize long-term debt and related interest are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, Notes

Year Ending Payable, and Deferred Loss

June 30, Principal Interest
2012 $ 1,737,357 § 369,629
2013 1,318,674 356,551
2014 1,285,839 343,043
2015 1,299,947 328,934
2016 1,361,006 314,222
2017-2021 6,970,045 1,335,186
2022-2026 7,267,483 913,094
2027-2031 6,384,510 468,674
2032-2036 3,149,696 85,924
2037-2041 472,835 -
Totals $ 31,247,392 § 4,515,257

Changes in Long-Term Debt:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Issuances Retirements  June 30, 2011

Bonds and notes payable $ 20,700,132 $ 3,060607 $ (1,513347) § 31,247,392
Deferred loss on early retirement {5,558) - 2,222 (3,336)
OPEB liability 200,500 99,900 - 300,400
Compensated absences 159,173 25,086 - 184,259

Total $ 30054247 $ 3185593 § (1,511,125) § 31,728,715
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

Note 7 — Long-term Obligations: (Continued)
Business-type Activities: {(Continued)
Tazewell County Public Service Authority (Continued)

Details of Long-term Debt:

Final Arnount of Balance Amount
Inferest Issue Maturity Originat Business-type Due Within
Rates Dates Date Issue Activities One Year
Revenue Bond Series 1999A 2.50% 71211999 2112030 % 187,000 § 117635 § 4,855
Revenue Bond Series 19998 0.00% 21999 12/1/2029 90,024 48,979 2,570
Revenue Bond Series 19%9C 2.50% 10/2211999  10/1/2029 387,415 281,359 12,058
Revenue Bond Series 19990 1.50% 11/5/1999 3112625 411,320 221,369 14,253
Revenue Bond Series 2000A 0.00% 3132001 8/1/2023 1,877,590 1,172,815 58,645
Revenue Bond Series 2000B 0.00% 3/31/2000 12142030 176,465 114,787 6,026
Revenue Bond Series 2000C 0.00% 8/4/2000 111112031 1,489,480 817,328 39,871
Revenue Bond Series 2000D 2.50% 8/29/2000 31112032 1,579,210 1,236,928 45,248
Revenue Bond Series 2000E 0.00% 1117/2000 5172032 1,374,516 870,306 41,443
Revenue Bond Series 2000F 0.00% 11/47/2000  5/1/2032 606,016 400,076 19,051
Revenue Bond Series 2001A 0.00% 5712001 3112032 1,752,851 887,379 42,256
Revenue Bond Series 2001B 0.00% 12/20/2001 6/1/2033 4,563,680 3,388,008 154,023
Revenue Bond Series 2001C 0.00% 3/29/2002 6/1/2033 1,978,113 1,443,762 85,668
Revenue Bond Series 2001B 0.00% 1202002002 121112034 1,387 467 1,064,077 46,343
Revenue Bond Series 2004A 0.00% 6/16/2004  11M/2034 463,353 363,609 15,480
Revenue Bond Series 2004B 3.00% B/24/2004 1112025 111,043 83,449 4,893
Revenue Bond Series 2004C 3.00% 812412004 3112025 555,640 435,680 25418
Revenue Bond Series 2005A 0.00% 6/17/2006  10/1/2035 349,988 285,849 11,666
Revenue Bond Series 20058 0.00% 6/17/2005 11/2036 1,259,399 1,011,551 40,565
Revenue Bond Series 2005C 3.00% 91512005 11/2027 1,328,089 1,063,681 52,790
Revenue Bond Series 2006A 0.00% 5/15/2006 3112032 4,746,285 3,230,543 191,500
Revenue Bond Series 2007A 3.00% 211212607 6172007 228,788 177,054 8,820
Revenue Bond Series 20078 0.060% 12/20/2007  6/1/2007 300,055 268,559 9,965
Series2005 3404.93%  4/1/2008 10112018 241,259 175,646 21,059
General Obligation and
Revenue Series 2005 0.00% 71152005 11412037 2,002,799 1,549,273 60,660
Revenue Bond Series 2009A 3.83% 7/1/2009 6,573,235 6,205,383 174,253
Revenue Bond Series 20098 0.00% 5172010 4,634,378 2,724 203 93,938
Revenue Bond Series 2009C 0.00% 511/2010 705,365 234122 7,804
Revenue Bond Series 2010A 3.00% 41112010 1,164,267 943,920 36,174
Line of Credit 750,000 100,000 100,000
Ling of Credit (Due to Tazewell County) nfa nla nia 450,000 330,062 330,062
Subtotal § N247392 § 1,737,357




COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NGOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 — Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Business-type Activities: (Continued)

Tazewell County Public Service Authority (Continued)

Details of Long-term Debt: (Continued)

Final Amount of Balance Amount
Interest Issue Maturity Original Business-type Due Within
Rates Dates Date lssue Activities One Year
Deferred Loss nia nfa nfa n/a $ (3.336) § (2,222
Other Obligations:
OPEB Liability nfa nfa nfa nfa $ 300400 §
Compensated Absences n/a n/a nfa nfa 184,259

Total Long-term debt

Component Unit - Schoot Board

$§ 31728715 § 1,735,135

The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the Component Unit School Board for the year ended June 30, 2011

Balance Baiance
July 1, 2010 Issuances Retirements June 30, 2011
Capital leasss $ 4794128 $ - 8 (437,063) $ 4,357,065
OPEB Obligation 671,300 1,405,400 (1,161,100 815,600
Total $ 5465428 $ 1405400 $ (1,598,163) $ 5,272,665

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.



COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 — Long-term Obiligations: (Continued)

Component Unit - School Board (Continued)

Details of Long-Term Debt:

Capital Leases
Capital Lease
Capital Lease

Total Capital Leases

Other Obligations:
OPER Obligation

Total Long-ferm Debt

Final Amount of Balance Amount

Interest Issue Maturity Original  Governmental  Due Within
Rates Dates Date Issue Activities One Year
3.58% 8/19/2008  8M9%2013 § 486,633 § 302184 § 97206
4.195% 101512007 10/5/2022 4,792,700 4,054,881 266,857
$ 4357065 § 364,063

nfa nfa nfa nfa 3 915,600 $§ -
$ 5272665 § 364,063

The School Board has entered into capital leases for school buses and energy renovations on the elementary schools.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and therefore have been recorded at the
present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

Total assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

School Buses $ 486,633
Building Renovations 3,378,030
Total Assets $ 3,864,663
Accumulated Depreciation (314,891)
Neft Book Value of Assets $ 3549772

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 201

Note 7 - Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Component Unit - School Board (Continued)

Present value of future minimum lease payments:

Year Ending Capital
June 30, Leases
2012 $ 544,983
2013 544 983
2014 544 984
2015 436,959
2016 436,959
2017-2021 2,184,785
2022-2023 873,918
Total minimum lease
payments $ 5,667,581
Less: amount representing
interest (1,210,516

Present value of future
minimum lease payments  $ 4,357,065

Component Unit — Airport Authority

The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the Component Unit Airport Authority for the year ended June 30,
2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Issuances Refirements June 30, 2011

Notes payable $ 79,265 § - $ (13,677) $ 65,588
Compensated absences 484 1,203 - 1,687
Total $ 79,749 $ 1,203 $ (13,677) § 67,275

The remainder of this page leift blank intentionally.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 -~ Long-term Obligations: {Continued)

Component Unit — Airport Authority (Continued)

Details of Long-Term Debt:

Final Amount of Balance Amount
interest lssuance Maturity  Original  Governmental Due Within
Rates  Date Date Issuance Activities One Year
Notes Payable
VRA 481% 7/1/2007 7M/2017 $ 100,000 $ 85588 § 9675
Other Obligations:
Compensated
Absences nfa nfa nfa n/a $ 1687 § 1,687
Total Long-term Debt $ 67,275 $ 11,362

Principal payments required on notes payable are as follows:

Year Ending Notes Payable
June 30 Principal Interast
2012 % 9,675 $ 3,039
2013 10,146 2,569
2014 10,640 2,075
2015 11,157 1,557
2016 11,701 1,013
2017-2018 12,269 444

$ 65,588 $ 10,697
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 - Long-term Obligations; {Continued)

Component Unit - Industrial Development Authority

Changes in Long-Term Debt:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Issuances Retirements June 30, 2011

Revenue bonds $ 17,545,000 % - § (780,000) $ 16,765,000

Loan premiums 36,612 (2,288) 34,324

Loss on redemption (966,217) - 60,389 (905,828)

Notes payable 723916 50,000 {102,308} 671,608

Total $ 17339311 § 50,000 §  (824207) § 16,565,104
Details of Long-Term Indebtedness:
Final Amount of Balance Amount
Interest Issue Maturity Original Business-type  Due Within
Rates Dates Date Issue Activities One Year

Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds 3.50-500%  4/13/2005 112027 § 12430000 $ 9,290,000 $§ 630,000

Revenue Bonds 2.50-5.00 12/15/2004 81112034 8,495,000 7,475,000 185,000
Total Revenue Bonds $ 16,765000 $ 815000
Notes Payable

Note Payable 4.20% 912212010 6221012 § 50,000 § 50,000 $ 50,000

Note Payable 4.00% 81112005 6/1/2016 1,000,000 621,608 08,442
Total Notes Payable $ 671608 § 148442
Other Obligations:

Loan Premiums nfa nfa nfa nfa $ 34324 % -

Loss on Redemption nfa nfa nfa nfa (905,828) -
Total Other Obligations $ (871,504) § -
Total Long-term Debt $ 16565104 § 963442
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 7 — Long-term Obligations: (Continued)

Component Unit — Industrial Development Authority (Continued)

Annual Requirements to amortize the above bonds, notes payable and related interest are as follows:

Year Ending Bonds Payable Notes Payable
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 815,000 $ 722,096 $ 148,442 § 25,173
2013 610,000 682,996 102,452 19062
2014 640,000 660,052 106,626 14,888
2015 670,000 635,352 110,971 10,544
2016 695,000 1,933,852 115,492 6,023
2017-2021 3,960,000 2,569,678 87,625 1,413
2022-2026 4,860,000 1,661,503
2027-2031 2,650,000 691,590
2032-2035 1,865,000 183,308
$ 16,765,000 $ 9,740,427 § 671,608 $ 77,103

The Authority and Tazewell County have entered into lease agreements relating to the lease of the Courthouse from
the IDA to the County. Lease payments from the County to the Authority will follow the debt schedule above. The
Authority and Tazewell County are considered related parties. The Authority received rent payments of $959,460 from
Tazeweli County during the year ended June 30, 2011.

Note 8 - Claims, Judgmenis, and Compensated Absences:

Compensated Absences:

In accordance with GASB 18, “Accounting for Compensated Absences”, the County has accrued liabilities arising from
outstanding claims, judgments and compensated absences. Each county employee earns annual leave at various
rates. The County has outstanding accrued vacation and sick pay totaling $673,307, $50,490 in the Landfill Enterprise
Component Unit Fund and $184,259 in the Public Service Authority Component Unit Fund.

Noie 9 — Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met. Deferred revenue totaling $25,220,499 is comprised solely of deferred property
tax revenue representing uncollected tax billings not available for funding of current expenditures. Property taxes due
subsequent to June 30, 2011 but paid in advance by taxpayers, totaled $1,141,917 at June 30, 2011.



COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

A. Plan Description

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
|dentification of Plan: Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Administering Entity: Virginia Retirement System (System)

All full-time, salaried permanent {professional) employees of public school divisions and employees of participating
employers are automatically covered by VRS upon employment. Benefits vest after five years of service. Members
earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and their employer is paying into the VRS.
Members are eligible to purchase prior public service, active duty military service, certain periods of leave and
previously refunded VRS service as credit in their plan.

VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local govemment employees — Plan 1 and Plan 2;

Members hired before July 1, 2010 and who have service credits before July 1, 2010 are covered under Plan 1.
Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least 5
years of service credit or at age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit. They may retire with a reduced benefit
early at age 55 with at least 10 years of service credit or at age 50 with at least five years of service credit.

Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits before July 1, 2010 are
covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their
normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years of service credit or when the sum of their age and
service equals 90. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service
credit.

Eligible hazardous duty members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at age 60
with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 25 years of service credit. These members include
sheriffs, deputy sheriffs and hazardous duty employees of political subdivisions that have elected to provide
enhanced coverage for hazardous duty service. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 50 with at
least five years of service credit. All other provisions of the member's plan apply.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement muitiplier as a percentage of the member's
average final compensation multiplied by the member's total service credit. Under Plan 1, average final compensation
is the average of the member's 36 consecutive months of highest compensation. Under Plan 2, average final
compensation is the average of the member's 60 consecutive months of highest compensation. The retirement
multiplier for non-hazardous duly members is 1.70%. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents is 1.85%. The retirement multiplier for eligible poliical subdivision hazardous duty employees other
than sheriffs and jail superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by employer. At retirement, members can elect the
Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment (PL.OP) or the Advance Pension Option. A
retirement reduction factor is applied {o the Basic Benedit amount for members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP or
Advance Pension Option or those retiring with a reduced benefit.

Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second calendar year of
retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%; under Plan 2, the COLA cannot exceed 6.00%. During
years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0.00%. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of
the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
General Assembly of Virginia.
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 10 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)
A. Plan Description

The system issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statemenis and
required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may be downloaded from their website at
hitp://www varetire org/Pdi/Publications/2010-annual-report.pdf or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at
P.0. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

B. Funding Policy

Primary Government:

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5.00% of their
annual salary to the VRS, This 5.00% member contribution may be assumed by the employer. In addition, the
County is required fo confribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the
actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The County’s
contribution rate for the fiscal year ended 2011 was 8.16% of annual covered payroll.

Discretely Presented Compoenent Unit - School Board (Non-Professional Employees):
Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5.00% of their

annual salary to the VRS. This 5.00% member contribution may be assumed by the employer. In addition, the
School Board is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using
the actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The School
Board's contribution rate for the fiscal year ended 2011 was 11.37% of annual covered payroll.

C. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2011, the County of Tazewell's annual pension cost of $792,833 ($485,804 for employee portion)
and $430,694 ($189,400 for employee portion) was equal to the County of Tazewells required and actual
contributions for the County and the School Board Non-Professionals, respectively.

Trend Information
Fiscal Year  Annual Pension Percentage of APC  Net Pension
Ending Cost {APC) Contributed Obligation

Primary Govemment:

County:
6/30/2011  § 1,278,637 100% -
6/30/2010 1,229,581 100% -
6/30/2009 1,226,614 100% -

School Board:
Non-professional Employees:

6/30/2011  § 620,004 100%
6/30/2010 620,248 100%
6/30/2009 635,521 100%
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)
C. Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2009 included {a) an investment rate of return
(net of administrative expenses) of 7.50%, (b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year, for
general government employees and 3.50% to 4.75% for employees eligible for enhanced benefits available to law
enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) a cost-of-living adjustment of 2.50% per year. Both the
investment rate of return and the projected salary increases include an inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial
value of the County of Tazewell's assets is equal to the modified market value of assets. This method uses
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year period. The
County of Tazewell's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of covered payroll
on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009 for the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
(UAAL} was 20 years.

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

Primary Government:

As of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 81.07% funded. The actuarial accrued
liability for benefits was $41,488,518, and the actuarial value of assets was $33,636,379, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $7,852,140. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by
the plan) was $9,816,701, and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 79.99%.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board (Non-Professional Employees):
As of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 72.28% funded. The actuarial accrued
liability for benefits was $23,830,457, and the actuariai value of assets was $17,224,515, resuiting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $6,605,942. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by
the plan) was $3,931,143, and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 168.04%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents mulfiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

E. Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board (Professional Employees)

Plan Description
The Tazewell County School Board contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), a cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System. VRS provides retirement
and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia. The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that
report may be downloaded from their website at http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2010-annual-report.pdf or
obtained by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.
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Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan: (Continued)

E. Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board (Professional Employees) (Continued)

Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia {1950), as amended, to contribute 5.00% of their
annual salary to the VRS. The employer may assume this 5.00% member contribution. In addition, the School
Board Is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the
actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustegs. The School Board's
contribution to the statewide cost sharing pool for professional employees, including the 5% member contribution,
was $1,111,829, $3,271,814, and $2,614,186 for the fiscal years ended 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
Required employer and employee contributions represented 3.93% for the entire fiscal year 2011, 8.81% of covered
payroll for July 2009 through March 2010 and 0.00% for April through June 2010, and 8.81% for the entire fiscal
year 2009.

Note 11 — Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEBY):

A. Plan Description
The Tazewell Post-Retirement Medical Plan (TPRMP) is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan

administer by the County. TPRMP provides health insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. To be
eligible, employees must meet the age and service criteria for retirement benefits under VRS, which requires that
the employee be (1) age 50 with 10 years of service; (2) age 55 with 5 years of service; or (3) age 65 with 5 years of
service. Additionally, the employee must be of full-time status in VRS and must be covered by the active plan at the
time of retirement. Coverage continues for the earlier of a period of ten years or reaching Medicare eligibility (age
65). The benefit provisions, including employer and employee contributions, are governed by the Board of
Supervisors and can be amended through board action. The TPRMP does not issue a publicly available financial
report.

B. Funding Policy
The Tazewell County Government establishes employer medical contribution rates for all medical plan participants

as part of the budgetary process each year. The County also determines how the plan will be funded each year,
whether it will be partially funded or fully funded in the upcoming fiscal year. For fiscal year 2011, the County will
continue on a pay-as-you-go basis and leave the plan unfunded.

For retirees of the County and School Board, the following premiums and refiree responsibilities were effective at
March 1, 2010;

Monthly Retiree Share of
Contribution Premiums
Pre-Medicare
Retiree $ 575.00 §$ 57.50
Retiree and Spouse 1,064.00 204.20
Retiree and Child 1,064.00 204.20
Family 1,553.00 350.90

Post-Medicare*
Retiree 5 16000 $ 160.00

* Premiums include medical coverage only
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COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 11 - Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligaticn
The County and School Board’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the County and School Board’s annual OPER cost for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County and School Board’s net OPER obligation:

County School Board Total

Annual required contribution $ 595400 $ 1,407,000 $ 2,002400
Interest on net OPEB obligation 21,300 26,900 48,200
Adjustment fo annual required contribution (22,700) (28,500) (51,200)

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 594,000 1,405,400 1,999,400
Actual contributions 328,300 1,161,100 1,489,400

Increase in net OPEB obligation 265,700 244,300 510,000
Net QOPEB obligation - beginning of year 531,700 671,300 1,203,000
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 797400 $§ 915600 § 1,713,000

The County and Schoal Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation were as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual Annual OPEB Cost  Net OPEB

Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2011  § 1,999,400 74% $ 1,713,000
6/30/2010 1,945,800 74% 1,203,000
6/30/2009 1,881,500 66% 645,300

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

Primary Government:

As of March 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) was $6,509,460,
all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll {annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$12,516,483, and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 52.01%.

Component Unit — School Board:

As of March 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) was $15,188,740,

all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$29,205,126, and ratic of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 52.01%.
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June 30, 2011

Note 11 - Other Postemployment Benefits: {(Continued)

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the prabability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual resulis are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the March 1, 2010, actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return per annum. An annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9 percent
initially, reduced by decrements of 1 percent until an ultimate rate of 5 percent is reached. The UAAL is being
amortized as a level percentage over the remaining amortization period, which at March 1, 2010, was 30 years.

Note 12 - Contingent Liabilities:

Federal programs in which the County and its component units participate were audited in accordance with the
provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Pursuant to the provisions of this circular all major programs and certain other programs were
tested for compliance with applicabie grant requirements. While no matters of noncompliance were disclosed by audit,
the Federal Government may subject grant programs to additional compliance tests which may result in disallowed
expendifures. In the opinion of management, any future disallowances of current grant program expenditures, if any,
would be immaterial.

Note 13 - Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost:

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and moniforing functions at the site for thirty years after closure,
Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or affer the date that the landfill stops accepting
waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and post closure care costs as an operating expense in each
period based on landfill capacity used at each balance sheet date. Of the $5,085,137 reported as landfill closure and
post closure care liability at June 30, 2011, $5,085,137 represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on
use of 34 percent of the estimate capacity of the landfill.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

Note 13 ~ Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost: (Continued)

The County will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $9,977,593 as the remaining
capacity is filled. The County expects to close the landfill in 2055. Actual costs may be higher due fo inflation, changes
in technology or changes in regulations. These estimated amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all
closure and post closure care in 2011.

The County uses the Commonwealth of Virginia’s financial assurance mechanism to meet the Department of
Environmental Quality's assurance requirements for landfill closure and postclosure costs.

Note 14 — Risk Management:

The County and its component unit — School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theit of, damage
to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial
insurance. The County and its component unit — School Board participate with other localities in a public entity risk pool
for their coverage of general liability and auto insurance with the Virginia Municipal Liability Pool. Each member of this
risk pool jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any liability. The County and its component unit -
School Board pay the Virginia Municipal Group contributions and assessments based upon classification and rates info
a designated cash reserve fund out of which expenses of the pool, claims and awards are fo be paid. In the event of a
foss deficit and depletion of all available excess insurance, the pool may assess all members in the proportion in which
the premium of each bears o the total premiums of all members in the year in which such deficit occurs. The County
and its component unit - School Board continue to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Noie 15 - Interfund Transfers;

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Fund Transfer In Transfer Out
Primary Government;

General Fund g - % 2,230,719

Coal Road improvement 16,356 -

E-911 Fund 100,000 -

Capital Projects Fund 500,600 15,895

Landfill Enterprise Fund 1,630,258 -
Total $ 2246614 § 2,246,614

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgeting authorization.
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June 30, 2011

Note 16— Surety Bonds:
Amount

Commonwealth of America, Division of Risk Management

James E. Blevins, Clerk of the Circuit Court $710,000

Norman L. Cook, Treasurer 560,000

Emma N. Hagy, Commissioner of the Revenue 3,000

H.S. Caudill, Sheriff 30,000
The above constitutional officers’ employees

Blanket bond 50,000

Landfill employees 20,000
VACO Insurance Program:

All School Board employees - blanket 250,000
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland Surety:

James Spencer, County Administrator 50,000
St. Paul Fire and Marine insurance Company

Rex Tester, Director of Social Services 25,000

All Social Services employees - blanket 100,000

Note 17 — Restatement of Beginning Balances:

Component Unit-  Proprietary Fund

School Board Landfill
Beginning net assets, as previously reported $ 18,309,267 $ 5,974 441
To record fixed assets from prior period 486,633 25,269
To record accumulated depreciation from prior pericd (97,326) {153,487)
To record capital lease from prior period (396,030} -
Beginning net assets, as restated b 18,302,544 § 5,846,223

The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
General Fund

Exhibit 11

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES
General Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses
Fines and Forfeitures
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Costs
intergovernmental Revenues:
Commenwealth
Federal Government
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government Administration
Judicial Administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Education
Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Community Development
Non-Departmental
Capital Projects
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Other Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Batance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Budget Amounts Variance with
Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Pos (Neq)

21,974,515 % 21,074515 § 22,580,736 § 606,221
7,410,800 7,410,800 7,871,832 461,032
330,185 333,045 387,173 54 128
25,000 25,000 36,612 11,612
682,629 682,629 566,042 (116,587)
274,000 292,080 348,238 56,148
570,000 508,04¢ 288,716 {219,333)
228,998 262,355 186,560 {65,795)
10,026,558 10,034,202 10,607,148 572,946
4,965,225 4,965,225 4,372,551 (592,674)
46,487,910 § 46,487,910 $ 47,255,608 $ 767,698
6,337,052 % 6,336,287 $ 5,079,097 § 1,257,180
2,085,255 2,143,906 2,332,856 (188,850)
11,431,450 11,626,040 11,081,377 544 663
4,332,429 4,477,318 3,762,953 714,365
7,884,047 7,889,452 7,902,800 {13,448)
12,242,812 12,242,812 14,733,844 508,968
1,238,654 1,288,559 1,227,381 61,178
766,636 791,404 678,047 113,357
1,428,129 1,162,216 728,594 433,622
250,000 8,000 8,000 -
- - 764,330 (764,330}
- - 469,109 (469,109}
47997364 § 47965994 % 45,768,488 $ 2,197,506
{1,509,454) § {1,478,084) § 1,487,120 % 2,965,204
(100,000) $ (100,000) § (2,230,719) $ (2,130,719)
{100,000} $ (100,000) % (2,230,719) B (2,130,719)
{1,609,454) § (1,578,084) $ {743,599) § 834,485
{2,712,436) (2,927,915) 8,592,772 11,520,687
{4,321,890) § (4,505,990} § 7849173 % 12,355,172
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Regquired Supplementary Information
Schedule of Pension and OPEB Funding Progress
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 12

Primary Government:
County Retirement Plan

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded

Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL (UAAL Assets as % Covered % of Covered
as of Assets Liability (AAL) {3)-(2) of AAL (2)/(3) Payroll Payroll {4)/{6)
1) {2 3) “) (8) (8) (7)
June 30,2010 8 33,636,379 $ 41,488,519 § 7,852,140 81.07% $ 9,816,711 79.99%
June 30, 2009 33,585,523 38,086,346 4,500,823 88.18% 9,806,004 45.90%
June 30, 2008 33,103,803 35,832,857 2,728,964 92.38% 9,464,682 28.83%
County Posi-Retirement Medical Plan
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL (UAAL Assets as % Covered % of Covered
as of* Assets Liability (AAL) {3)-(2) of AAL (2)/(3) Payroll Payroll (4)/{6)
(1} 2) (3} 4) 5) (6} {7
March 1,2010 § - B 6,509,460 § 6,509,460 0.00% % 12,516,483 52.01%
March 1, 2008 - 4,695,900 4,695,900 0.00% 9,171,680 51.20%
*Only two years of data available
Discretely Presented Component Unit:
Schootl Board Non-professional Retirement Plan
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL {(UAAL Assets as % Covered % of Covered
as of Assets Liability {AAL) (3)-{2) of AAL {2)/(3} Payroll Payroll (4)/{6)
{1 (2) (3) (4) (5 (6) {7)
June 30,2010 % 17,224,515 % 23,830,457 $ 6,605,942 7228% $ 3,931,143 168.04%
June 30, 2009 17,679,337 22,162,220 4,482 883 79.77% 4,035,361 111.08%
June 30, 2008 17,804,116 20,840,092 3,035,976 85.43% 3,996,614 75.96%
School Board Post-Retirement Medical Plan
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL (UAAL! Assets as % Covered % of Covered
as of* Assets Liability {AAL) (3)-{2) of AAL (2)/(3} Payroll Payroll (4)/{6)
4} (2) {3) (4) (5 (6) (7)
March 1, 2010 $ -3 15,188,740 % 15,188,740 0.00% % 29,205,126 52.01%
March 1, 2008 - 16,084,500 16,084,500 0.00% 31,415,039 51.20%

*Only two years of data available
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Major Capital Projects Fund-County CIP Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 13

REVENUES
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Commonwealth
Federat Government
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public Works
Community Development
Capital Projects

Total Experditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under)

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers in
Transfer Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Budget Amounts Variance with

Actual Final Budget

Original Einal Amounts Pos {Neq)
$ - % - $ 19 § 19
4,902,355 4,902,355 1,741,206 (3,161,149)
509,840 509,840 41,493 (468,347)
$ 5412,185 § 5412,195 § 1,782,718 3 (3,629,477)
$ 787671 & 787,671 $ 787,671 3 -
5,138,870 5,138,870 5,081,952 (842,982)
- - 224,855 {224,855)
3 5926641 3§ 5,926,641 § 6,994,478 (1,067,837}
$ (514,446} (514,446) § (5,211,760) 3 {4.697,314)
3 - % -8 500,000 3 500,000
- - (15,895) (15,885)
$ -3 -3 484,105 3 484,105
$ (514,448} $ (514,446) § {4,727,655) § (4,213,209)
(1,359,497} {24,393,424) 8,080,980 32,474,404
$ (1,873,943} §  (24.007.870) $ 3,353,325 & 28,261,195

-65-



Other Supplementary Information




Exhibit 14
County of Tazewell, Virginia
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011

Expendahble Trust Funds Agency Funds
School Special Local
Deferred Deferred Weifare Sales Tax
Comp Fund Comp Fund Funds Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivaients 3 - % - 3 39,873 § - % 39,873
Investments 588,125 1,665,380 - - 2,253,505
Due from Other Governmental Units - - - 1,008,022 1,008,022
Total Assets $ 588,125 § 1,665,380 3 39,873 § 1,008022 § 3,301,400
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Due to Primary Government 3 - 3 - $ - 8 854,600 $ 854,600
Due to Other Governmental Units - - - 153,422 153,422
Amounts Held for Others 588,125 1,665,380 39,873 - 2,293,378
Total Liabilities $ 588,126 $ 1,665,380 3 39,873 3 1,008,022 $ 3,301,400

-66-



Exhibit 15
County of Tazewell, Virginia
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011

Expendable
Trust Funds Agency Funds
School Special Local
Deferred Deferred Welfare Sales Tax
Comp Fund Comp Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Balance, July 1, 2010 3 647,516 $ 1,347,020 § 37939 % 999,393
Additions 2,305 373,306 50,269 6,890,695
Deductions {61,686) (54,046} {48,335) (6,882,066)
Balance, June 30, 2011 5 588,125 % 1,665,380 & 39873 % 1,008,022
LIABILITIES
Balance, July 1, 2010 5 647,516 3 1,347,020 § 37,939 % 999,393
Additions 2,305 373,308 50,269 6,890,695
Deductions (61,696) (54,946) (48,335) (6,882 ,066)
Balance, June 30, 20114 $ 588,125 $  1,665380 % 38873 § 1,008,022
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County of Tazeweli, Virginia
Non-Major Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2011

Exhibit 16

Special School
Revenue Funds Construction Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,113,711 % 1565 § 3,115,276
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles):
Taxes 357,544 - 357,644
Other Local Taxes and Fees 1,500 - 1,500
Prepaids 22,000 - 22,000
Due from Other Governmental Units 9,622 - 9,622
Total Assets $ 3,504,377 % 1,565 § 3,505,942
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 27,847 § - 3 27,847
Total Liabilities 3 27,847 % - 3 27,847
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable $ 22,000 % -3 22,000
Restricted - 1,565 1,565
Committed 3,454,530 - 3,454,530
Total Fund Balances $ 3,476,530 % 1,565 % 3,478,005
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 3,504,377 & 1,565 % 3,505,942
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Non-Major Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit 18

REVENUES
Other Local Taxes
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Commonwealth
Federal Government
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Judicial Administration
Public Safety
Public Works

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Special
Revenue Funds

2,237,290
15,271

368,390
355,063

School Construction

Total

2,237,290
15,271

368,300
355,063

2,976,014

2,976,014

1,200
1,448,150
629,311

1,200
1,448,150
628,311

2,078,661

2,078,661

897,353

897,353

116,356

&

116,356

116,356

eales
& |en

116,356

1,013,709
2,462,821

1,013,709
2,464,386

w3 e |erien

3,476,530

3,478,095




658 905 ¥ 591’912 ¢ (pel'06E'E)  S{8ERTit'E) LER'BE § 1£9'68 3 000'0S $ 000°05
Qe £E6'862°) (e68226'L) (£68'221'2) 99/'G2 997’6} 000'05 £00°05
£ES'FRE'L ZET'LLB 8 (L0g'29€) ¢ (5¥6'05E) L20'FL g L0 $ - $ -
9G5E'9l 9GE'Sl g - g - - $ - $ - g -
9GE'gl 95e'9L g - $ - - $ - $ - $ -
£41'392°L 9.5'006 $ (Loe'z98) ¢ (S¥6'05E) LIG'FL § LL0F % - g -
082°200°) 120'G8 $ LOEZ60'L § G¥6GLO') 00E'91 $ 002 $ 00S'ZL 3 00521
08Z°200°L 120'G8 LOE'260') GY6'GL0"L - - - -

- - $ - g - 00€'gL $ 00Z'L § 005'LL $ 00541
188°092 L6R'G86 $ 000'sgL $ 000'Ge. (6z272) $ LLZ'SL $ 00S'Z¢ $ 005'it
- - - - (6z2'e) LiZ'51L 006 4L 005'2L
168'082 168'586 ¢ 000's2L $ 000'seL - g - $ - $ -

GETIELT sjunowy feusg TEWBbH0 [ CEINELTE] Sjunowy [CIE] [CITs)

1eBpng |eul4 lemjoy 126png 1eury fenioy

YUM SDUBLEA sjunowy jsbpng UM SoUBLIBA sjunowy jabpng

puny Juswanosdwy peoy |eo) pung Areaqry me

6 HauUx3

¢ o | abeg

(siseg yseD) |enioy pue Jabpng - aoug|eg pung L) sabueyy) pue samppusdx] ‘sanusaay Jo s|npaysg ButLigquion
spun4 anuaaay [ejoads tolep-uoN

L10Z ‘0€ Sunf pspu3 183 {80S14 aug 104

ejuBap ‘flamaze) Jo fjunon

Buipu3 - asueleg pung
Buivubag - soueleg pung
aoue(eg pund u abueysn 1N

(sesn) seainog BuduRULL JALQ ()0

Ul siaysuely

(sasn) sadinog Butoueuly Byio

sauniipuadxg

{1apun)) JoAQ SaNUaAaY JO (AuBDYs(Q) S580XT

SHIOMA 21ONd

Aegeg oland

uclRASIUIDY [BIRDP
Jusuny
1SIUNLIANIIXI

sanuaasy [ejo],
JUSLILIBATE) |Blepay
UJ[E@MUCIUILGD

IsanueAasy [ejuswiwaachian)

sainag 1o sabieysn

SAXE| |BOOT JBUI0

SANNIAIN

71-



08t LPg L % 65Z2'9P0°L g {121'564) 3 {861'292) 3 122'vl $ [ZZVZL $ 00005 3 00005
R E £8/'L86 {066°262) {000°282) +GL'0G $SL001L 00005 000°0%

60405 $ 9LP'F9 ${e25'208) 3 {861's6Y) $ €081 % £/0'9L g - $ -

- S 000001 $ 000'00% 3 00000t g - g - g - g -

- $ Q00001 3 000003 $ 000'00% $ - $ - § - $ -

6¥0'20G 5 {veg'se) 3 {2257209) 3 {861 565) $ €081 $ €081 g - g -

0r0'925'L g JO0GRY L T IP0vi6Z & ¢l9'996Z  § (062 vp) $ 062 FvS $ 0007005 $ 000'005

- - - - {caz'o) 062 vt 000°008 006008

op0'ezs't 200°6PY'L IP0'PI6'E 7.9'996'2 - - - -

- g - $ - $ - s - $ - $ - g -

{166'556) T CBbeLYL 8 PIPLIEE  § wIPLIEZ  $ EOEE9 $ £OE205 $ 000°005 $ 000005

{cog'zsa'y) £90°G5E 998'206°L 098'206't - - - -

06€'90¢ 06€'89¢ - - - - - -

ZEV'SET $ 0£0'689 $ 809'E9Y 3 809'c9P $  £9£29 $ £9£'295 $ 000°005 ¢ 000'00S
.mwz“mom spunowng JEL4 [EWBbLg _mmz“mo& sjunowy {eliy _mn_m_uo
196png feuyy lenjoy 186png (euly enjoy

LIBIA SUBLIEA sjunouwy jabpng UM BouBLEA sjunowy Jabpng

pund LLé-3 pungjuawdojeAa( siuouody peoy 0D

Bulpug ~ @ouejeg pung
Bujubag - soueey pung
asue|eg pung u) sBueyd 1eN

(sasm) seanog Bunuesulg 18YI0 (2101
U] siajsuel ]
{sasn) seoinog Buloueurt 18410

salnypuadxy
(18pun) 18A0 sanuaaay jo (Aouainyeq) sseax]

SHIOM DN

Agjeg oigng

UONENSIUIIPY |B1pnr
JUaung
:SFUNLIGNIIXT

sanuaasy |10
JUSLLUIBACS) |BIBPEH
Yl[ESMUOLILL0T
sanuensy [Bjuasactla)|
Sa0IA8G J0) sabieysd
Sexe] (B30T 4810
SINNIATH

§1 HQx3

¢ Jo g sbied

10z ‘0€ aunr pepu3 Jea) (EJ514 Wy Jod

(siseg ysen) jenjay pue jabpng - saugeg pung uj sefiugy) pue sainjpuadxg 'senuaaay Jo ajnpayosg Buiuiquon

spund anuoady e|aedg Jofe-uoN
elulBaip ‘llomaze ], jo funos)

-72-



1G2°L9F9 3 0E6'9.F'C ${172'sg6'2) §lzeg'ssle) 3 (2o $ or $ ¥rl g vrl g Bupu3 - @ouejeg pung

q9L'BLG Y LZR'ZGY 2 WEE'SLL'E) (6rL'608'2) X2 D vl vl BuuiBag - aoueyeg pund
ERG'ENR'Y $ 6OL'ELD'E $ (v20'608) ${evri'ova) $  (epL) g (gp1) g - g - 3 agueleq pun; Ul sbuey?d BN
9GE'0L § 9GE'9LL $ 000'00t § 000'00L s - $ - $ - g - 3 (s8p7) se2unog Bupueuly 18YI0 (E101
9ge'gL 3 GGE'9LL 4 000'00L 3 00O'00L g - g - 3 - $ - $ U| ssgjsuel,
{sasn)} sesanog Bulsueuls 18yin
1221981 $ €5e'/68 $ (b/8'696) 3 {cv 1 ave) g (ept) 3 (k1) $ - g - 3 sanpusdxs
(1apupn) 19AQ sanuaaay Jo (AIUDIYLA() S50IXT
181605’ $ 199'820°Z % 8vg'e8s’t § 2LL'09St 8 (gyl) 3 EFL 3 - $ - 3
066'296 LLE'6E9 LDE'ZBS'L GrE'GLS L - - - - SHIOAA 210N
168'SZ8'E 051'8¥t'L LVO'VIB'E 7/9'996'2 (gpt) erl - - Aajes dlang
00e'0L $ 00Z'L % 006'LL % 00g'Ll g - $ - g - g - S UDNBLSIIIWNY [@Ipnr
juaung
ISIUNLIONIIXI
(0962£9) § pi0'9.677 $ PIGTLOE S PIEEIE G - g - g - $ - 3 sanuaAsY (2101
(608'Z85"t) £60'66e 99R'206'L 998'L06'L - - - - JUBLIUISAOE) [RI3pa4
06£'898 06¢'89¢ - - - - - - Yl[EaMUOLILGD)
senueasy |ejuawulaachiaiu|
(6zz'2) LZ'GL 00S'LL 00S'LL - - - - sa019g J0) sabieyn
Z80'8bS ¢ 0BZ'LEE'E $ 900'889'L ¢ 809'88G'L & - $ - $ - $ - $ saxe] (2207 180
SENNIATY
[GENMELE) Silnollly Teuid IEEIN6) [CETELT] Silnotly jetid [0}
10bpng feuty emay 106png |2uld lemoy
Yim aouenep sjunow’y Jabphg WIM aouenep sjunowy jabpng
letoL pung dweg pabeweq

11.0Z '0€ aunf papug Jes A [B3s1d diy) 104
{siseg yse3) |[emoy pue 186png - sauejeg pung ui saSueys) pue samnjipuadxy ‘saRueAay jo a|npaiudg Buluiquio)
spun4d anuaaay (eioadg Jolep-ucy
eiBaA ‘lemezey jo Aiunon
61 Nqiyx3

¢lo¢ abed

73



County of Tazewell, Virginia

Exhibit 20

Special Revenue Fund - Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Held for Others
Due from Qther Governmental Units
Prepaid expenses
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to Primary Government
Amounts held for others
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Committed
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmentat activities in the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit 1)

are different because:

Total fund balances - per above

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore, are not reported in the funds

Net assets of governmental activities -

component unit school board

-TA-

School
Eund

5,943,367
13,176
2,838,648
385,004

9,180,195

750,833
3,521,001
2,831,075

13,176

7,116,085

385,004
1,679,106

2,064,110

&R

9,180,195

$

2,064,110

21,094,529

(5,272,665)

17,885,974




County of Tazewell, Virginia

Exhibit 21

Special Revenue Fund-Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES
Revenue from Use of Money and Properly
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Cosis
intergovernmentat Revenues:

Local Government

Commonwealth

Federal Govermment

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Educatien
Capital Projects
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Other Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses})
Transfers In
Transfers Cut
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2}
are different because:

Net change in fund balance - fotal governmentat funds - per above

Governmental funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which the capital outlays

exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and simitar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amartized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the effect of

these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reporied in the Statemeni of Activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore are not reporied as expenditure in governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmentat funds - component unit school board

-75-

School
Fund

5 20,220
976,072
753,335
430,063

11,673,824
34,500,873
8,757,069

$ 57,111,476

$ 56,022,561
539,088

437,062
188,114
s 57,188,725

5 !77,249!
$ 395,848
(395,848)
$_ -
$ (77,249)
2,141,359
$ 2,064,110
$ (77,249)
(532,083)
437,062
(244,300
B 416,570



County of Tazewell, Virginia
Major Special Revenue Fund-Biscretely Presented Component Unit-School Board

Exhibit 22

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20114

REVENUES
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Costs
Intergovernmental Revenues:

Local Governrment

Commanwealth

Federal Government

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Education
Capital Projects
Debt Service:
Principal Refirement
Interest and Other Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Lises)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning
Fuind Balance - Ending

Budget Amounts Variance with
Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Pos {Neg)

8,768 § 8,768 % 20,220 & 11,452
979,500 979,500 476,072 {3,428)
163,000 163,000 753,335 590,335
175,000 175,000 430,063 255,063
12,182,812 12,182,812 11,673,844 (508,968)
36,039,254 36,039,254 34,500,873 (1,538,381)
8,947,044 8,947,044 8,757,069 (189,975)
58,495 378 § 58495378 § 57,111,476 § {1,383,902)
59,532,776 $ 590,532776 $ 56,022,561 § 3,510,215
- - 539,988 (539,988)
1,938,449 1,938,449 437,062 1,501,387
- - 189,114 (189,114)
61,471,225 § 61,471,225 § 57,188,725 § 4,282,500
{2,975,847) 3 (2,975,847} $ (77,249 $ 2,898,598
310,000 § 310,000 $ 305,848 § 85,848
(310,000) {310,000) {395,848} (85,848)
-3 -5 - $ -
(2,975847) § (2,975,847 % (77,249 3 2,898,598
{4,887,999) (4,887,999} 2,141,359 7,029,358
(7,863,846) § (7,863,846) § 2.084,110 $ 9,027 956
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Schedule 1
Page 1of 6

County of Tazewell, Virginia
Scheduie of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund. Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neqg)
Primary Government:
General Fund:
Revenue from Local Sources:
Generat Property Taxes:
Real property taxes $ 12,677,615 & 12,577,615 § 13,700,346 § 1,122,731
Real and personal public service corporation taxes 895,900 895,900 893,654 (2,248)
Personal properly taxes 6,000,600 6,000,000 5,138,990 (861,010)
Mobile home taxes 155,000 155,000 177,871 22 871
Machinery and tools {axes 900,000 900,000 1,207,077 307,077
Merchant's capital taxes 996,000 996,000 976,552 (19,448)
Penalties 295,000 295,000 322,793 27,793
Interest 155,000 155,000 163,453 8,453
Total General Property Taxes $ 21974515 § 21974515 & 22,680,736 & 606,221
Qther Local Taxes:
Local sales and use taxes % 4950000 $ 4950,000 % 4,998,718 § 48,718
Consumers’ utility taxes 900,000 900,000 760,681 {139,319}
Franchise license taxes 200,000 200,000 139,331 (60,669)
Litity license taxes 30,000 30,000 33,485 3,485
Motor vehicle licenses 36,000 36,000 33,079 (2,921)
Bank franchise taxes 44,800 44 800 41,331 {3,469)
Taxes on recordation and wilis 250,000 250,000 316,945 66,945
Coal severance taxes 1,000,000 1,000,600 1,548,262 548,262
Total Other Local Taxes % 7410800 % 7.410,800 § 7,871,832 § 461,032
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses:
Animal licenses $ 3,785 % 3,785 § 8,896 § 5111
Land use application fees 500 500 394 {106)
Transfer fees 1,500 1,500 1,250 {250}
Zoning and subdivision permits - - 1,366 1,366
Legal service fees 15,000 15,000 53,320 38,320
Transient {ee 192,500 192,500 202,777 10,277
Cavitts Creek camping fee 12,500 12,500 14,910 2,410
Collection fees 1,000 1,000 2,065 1,065
Building permits 90,000 90,000 69,483 (20,517}
Installment service fees 10,000 10,000 9,864 {136)
Return check fees 1,000 1,000 1,079 79
Junk dealers license 2,400 2400 3,300 900
Other permits and licenses - 2,860 18,469 15,609
Total Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses $ 330,185 S 333,045 § 387,173 % 54,128
Fines and Forfeitures:
Count fines and forfeitures 3 25000 § 25000 $ 36,612 % 11,612
Total Fines and Forfeitures 3 25000 % 25000 % 36,612 % 11,612
Revenite from Use of Money and Property:
Revenue from use of money k] 250,000 5 250,000 % 97,588 % (152,412)
Revenue from use of property 432,629 432,629 468,454 35,825
Total Revenue from Use of Money and Property $ 682,629 3 682,629 § 566,042 $ {116,587)
Charges for Services:
Commonwealth attorney fees 3 3,500 3 3,500 § 4877 8 1,377
Courthouse maintenance fees 12,500 12,500 12,008 (494)
Courthouse security fees 57,500 57,500 86,106 28,606
Library fees 25,000 43,090 42 977 (133
Sheriff special project fees - - 3,743 3,743
Gun permit fees - - 20,312 20,312
County garage service fees 175,000 175,000 170,593 (4,407)
Other fees 500 800 7,824 7,124
Total Charges far Services % 274000 $ 292,090 3 348,238 § 56,148
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Schedule 1
Page 2 of 8

County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Original Firal Final Budget-
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neqg)
General Fund: {continued)
Miscelianeous:
Miscellaneous 3 570,000 $ 492,950 § 82663 $ (410,287)
Expenditure refunds - 15,099 206,053 190,954
Total Miscellaneous $ 570,000 % 508,049 % 288,716 % (219,333)
Recovered Costs:
Library S 15,000 § 15,000 § 15,008 § 8
Administrator's salary 36,608 36,608 36,023 {585)
Health department - - 2,128 2,128
Welfare recoveries 95,000 95,000 14,140 {80,860}
Sherriff 3,743 3,743 - (3,743)
Insurance recoveries 78,647 112,004 129,261 17,257
Total Recovered Cosis $ 228998 % 262,355 8§ 196,560 % {65.795)
Total Revenue from Local Sources 3 31,496,127 § 31488483 $ 32275909 § 787,426
Intergovemmental Revenues:
Rewvenue from the Commonwealth:
Naon-categorical Aid:
Mobile home titling tax L] 99,446 § 99,446 $ 104,329 % 4,883
Maotor vehicle rental tax 20,000 20,000 45,588 25,588
Rolling stock tax 90,000 90,000 97,636 7,636
Personal property tax refief funds - - 2,758,262 2,758,262
Total Non-categarical Aid $ 209,446 $ 209,446 3 3.005815 % 2,796,369
Calegorical Aid:
Shared Expenses:
Commonwealth's Attorney 3 649,250 $ 649,250 $ 638,764 {10,486)
Sheriff 1,760,028 1,767,672 1,713,222 (54,450}
Commissioner of the Revenue 141,621 141,621 139,988 (1,633)
Treasurer 160,494 160,494 153,708 (6,786)
Registrar/Electoral Board 55,000 55,000 43,128 (11,872)
Clerk of the Circuit Court 430,772 430,772 451,784 21,012
Totat Shared Expenses $ 3,197,165 § 3,204,809 $ 3,140,594 $ {64,215)
Other Categorical Aig:
Public assistance and welfare administration $ 2,808,321 § 2,808,321 $ 2,436,110 $ (372,211)
Arts grant 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Fire programs 81,785 81,785 85,594 3,809
Library grant 149,022 149,022 149,135 13
Emergency medical services - - 40,749 40,749
At risk youth and family 1,823,300 1,823,300 1,641,028 {(281,372)
Litter controt 11,750 11,750 10,521 {1,229)
Community Correction Services 125,196 125,196 125,196 -
Department of Labor grant 555,195 555,195 - {558,195)
Virginia domestic violence 40,000 46,000 40,000 -
Community connect grant 855,000 855,000 - {855,000)
Victim witness grant 93,048 93,948 23,487 (70,461}
Justice assistance grant 33,231 33,231 - (33,231)
Other categorical aid 38,199 38,199 3,019 (35, 180)
Total Other Categorical Aid $ 6,619,947 $ 6,619,947 $ 4,460,733 $ (2,159,208)
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedute 1
Page 30of 8

Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source

General Fund: {continued)
Intergovermmental Revenues: {continued)
Revenue from the Commonwealth: {continued)
Totai Revenue from the Commonwealth

Revenue from the Federal Government:
Non-categorical Aid:
Payment in lieu of taxes

Categorical Aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration
Workforce investment
Emergency preparedness
Victim witness
V-Stop
FEMA
Total Categarical Aid

Total Revenue from the Federal Government
Total General Fund

Nan-maier Special Revenue Funds:
Law Library
Revenue from Local Sources:
Charges for Services:
Law library fees

Total Law Library Fund
Cozl Road Improvement Fund
Revenue from Local Sources:
Other Local Taxes:
Coal road tax

Miscellaneolss:
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue from Local Sources
Total Coal Road Improvement Fund
Coal Road Economic Development Fund
Revenue from Local Sousces:
Cther Local Taxes:

Coal road tax

Total Coal Road Economic Development Fund

-79-

Variance with

Originatl Final Finat Budget-
Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neg)

10,028,558 10,034,202 10,607,148 572,946
10,000 16,000 9,751 (249}
3,489,259 3,489,259 3,018,010 (471,249)
1,433,996 1,433,998 1,212,888 {221,108)
7,192 7,192 44 518 37,326

- - 70,461 70,461
24,778 24778 13,792 {10,986)

- - 3,131 3,131
4,955,225 4 955 225 4 362,800 (592.425)
4,965,225 4,965 225 4,372,551 (592,674)
46,487 910 46,487,910 47,255,608 767,698
17,500 17,500 15,271 (2,229)
17,500 17,500 15,271 {2.229)
725,000 725,000 985,897 260,897
335,604 335,604 - {335,604)
1,060,604 1,060,804 985,897 (74,707)
1,060,604 1,060,604 985,897 (74,707)
500,000 500,000 562,363 62,353
500,000 500,000 562,363 82,363




Schedule 1
FPage 4 of 6

County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Eund. Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neq)
Non-major Special Revenue Funds: (continued)
E-911 Fund
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Non-Categorical Aid:
E-911 communications tax 3 463,608 $ 463608 $ 680,030 $ 225422
Total Revenue from Local Sources $ 463,608 $ 463,608 $ 689,030 $ 225,422
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Revenue frem the Commonwealth:
Calegorical Aid:
Cther grant revenues 5 - 3 - % 368,360 § 368,350
Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical Aid:
Other grant revenues 3 1,907,866 % 1,807,866 % 355,063 % (1,552,803}
Total E-911 Fund 5 2,371,474 % 2,371,474 % 1,412,483 $ (958,991}
Total Non-Major Special Revenue Funds ] 3,949,578 § 3,949,578 $ 2976014 $ (973,564}
Major Capital Projects Fund:
County CIP Fund:
Revenue from Local Sources:
Revenue from Use of Meney and Properiy:
Revenue from use of money $ - % - % 19 § 19
Total Revenue from Local Scurces g - % - 3 1% § 19
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical Aid:
Other Categorical Aid:
GOF incentives % 400,000 % 400,000 § - 8 (400,000)
TROF incentives 400,000 400,000 - (400,600)
Kersey Road reimbursements 25,000 25,000 - (25,000}
Ceramic technology 36,355 36,355 36,355 -
Biuestone workforce training center 2,041,000 2,041,000 1,704,851 {336,149)
Bluestone TROF incentives 2,000,000 2,000,000 - (2,000,000}
Total Other Categorical Aid % 4,802,365 § 48023565 $ 1,741,206 § (3,161,149)
Total Revenue from the Commonwealth $ 4,902,355 $ 4,902,355 % 1,741,206 § {3,161,149)
Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical Aid:
Transportation enhancement grant § 508,840 § 502,840 § 41,493 § (468,347)
Totat County CIP Fund $ 5412195 § 5,412,195 & 1,782,718 % (3,629,477)
Total Primary Government $ 55849683 $ 55849683 $ 52014340 & (3.835,343)
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neg)
Discretely Presented Component Unit-Schoo! Board:
Major Speciat Revenue Fund:
Schoet Operating Fund:
Revenue from Local Sources:
Revenue from Use of Money and Property:
Revenue from use of money and property 3 8,768 § 8,768 § 20,220 % 11,452
Charges for Services:
Tuition ] 28,500 § 28,500 $ 52,526 § 24,026
Cafeteria sales 950,000 950,000 921,989 (28,011)
Charges for damaged books 1.000 1,000 1,557 557
Total Charges for Services % 979,500 % 979,500 % 976,072 $ (3,428}
Miscellaneous:
Miscellaneous $ 163,000 $ 163,000 $ 753,335 § 590,335
Recovered Costs:
Qther recaveries $ 175,000 % 175,000 § 430,063 % 255,063
Total Revenue from Local Sources % 1,326,268 % 1,326,268 § 2,179,680 $ 853,422
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Revenue from Local Governments:
Contribution from the County of Tazewell $ 12,182812 § 12,182,812 § 11673844 § (508,968)
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Categorical Aid:
Categorical Aid:
At risk fous-year olds 3 351,608 § 351608 § 351,608 $ -
At risk payments 642,322 542,322 628,538 (12,784)
Basic school aid 20,818,488 20,818,488 19,269,574 (t,548,914)
Composite Index Trans 689,505 683,505 650,056 (39,449)
ESL 15,816 15,816 15,816 -
GED funding 23,576 23,576 23,576 -
Gifted and talented children 222,120 222,120 217,691 {4,429)
Mentor teaching program - - 4,270 4,270
Reeding intervention 105,006 105,006 95,875 (9,131)
Reduced K-3 classroom 871,926 871,926 874,142 2,216
Remedial education 686,104 686,104 672,423 (13,681)
Remedial summer education 19,958 19,958 15,484 {4.474)
School food 45,284 45,284 37,584 {7,700)
Share of fringe benefils 2,157,034 2,157,034 2,114,021 (43,013)
Share of state sales tax 4,876,998 4,876,998 5,076,366 199,368
Special education - SOQ 2,838,408 2,838,408 2,654,591 (183,817}
Special education - bomebound - - 54,978 84,978
Standards of learning algebra readiness 86,620 86,620 88,789 2,169
Textbook payment 259,337 259,337 254,166 {5,171)
Teacher training - - 0,600 10,000
Technology assistance 440,000 440,000 466,000 26,000
Vocational education - SOQ 829,249 829,248 812,713 (16,536)
Vocational education - equipment - - 12,105 12,105
Vocational education - adult - - 9,541 9,541
Vocational education occup/tech 54,239 54,238 40,151 {14,088)
Other state payments 5,656 5,656 19,815 14,159
Total Categorical Aid $ 36039254 & 365033254 § 34500873 § {1,538,381)
Total Revenue from the Commonwealth $ 36,039,254 & 36,039,254 § 34,500,873 § (1,538,381)
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actuat
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Major and Mingr Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neqg)
Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board: (continued)
Major Special Revenue Fund: {continued}
School Operating Fund: {continued)
Intergovernmental Revenues: (continued}
Revenue from the Federal Government:
Categorical Aid:
Forest reserve funds § 10,000 % 10000 3 13,456 $ 3,456
Adult basic education 51,702 51,702 - {51,702)
Education Jobs 395,129 395,129 395,129 -
Title t ,808,050 1,808,050 1,417,533 (390,517)
Title I, Recovery Act 1,057,817 1,057,817 741,762 (316,055)
Title |, State Academic - - 22,262 22,262
Title H, A Staff training 225,000 225,000 890,950 668,950
Title f, ACSR 225,000 225,000 1,728 (223,272)
Title H, Part D 17,978 17,878 - (17,978)
Title VI-B 1,571,751 1,571,751 1,308,993 (262,758)
Title VI-B, Recavery Act 1,643,802 1,643,802 272,875 (1,370,927}
Wocational education 45,000 145,000 170,702 25,702
Titte VI-B-2 - - 164,448 164,448
Drug free schools 34,000 34,000 27,141 (6,859)
Reading first 32,009 32,000 99,059 67,050
State fiscal stabilization fund 306,369 306,369 1,330,800 1,024,431
School improvement - . 24,691 24 691
Schoot lunch 1,257,437 1,257,437 1,861,141 603,704
Schoot food direct - - 14,399 14,399
School reform 166,000 166,000 - (166,000)
Total Categorical Aid 8 8,947,044 5 8,047 044 $ 8,757,069 $ (189,975}
Total Revenue from the Federal Government 5 8,947,044 $ 8,847,044 3 8,757,069 $ {189,975}
Total Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board  $ 58485378 & 58495378 $ 57,111,476 § (1,383,902)
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance with
Original Final Final Budget-
Eund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neg)
Primary Government:
General Fund:
General Govemment Administration:
Legislative:
Board of supervisors 5 117,257 $ 122,142 % 112450 § 9,692
General and Financial Administration:
County administrator 3 225177 $ 239,521 8 233,549 § 5972
Legal services 169,894 180,989 180,405 584
Economic development 273,317 231,212 229,893 1,219
Commissioner of revenue 528,050 540,368 535,234 5,134
Reassessment 275,000 154,605 86,627 67,978
Treasurer 570,804 583,591 591,863 {B.272)
Finance office 200,007 230,560 225,633 4,927
Administration services 204,747 205,019 195,959 9,080
County garage 253,964 317,399 321,438 {4,040}
Information techrology 1,193,391 1,199,750 976,457 223,293
Workforce consortiurm 2,045,590 2,048,886 1,143,503 905,383
Transit system 75625 78,625 72,000 6,625
Total General and Financial Administration 5 6,018,656 $ 65,010,525 § 4,792,562 $ 1,247,963
Board of Elections:
Efectoral Board % 77.250 % 77250 % 53,010 § 24 240
Registrar 123,889 126,370 121,075 5,295
Total Board of Elections 5 201,139 $ 203620 % 174,085 29,535
TFotal Generat Government Administration 3 6,337,052 % 6,336,287 % 5,079,097 § 1,257,190
Judicial Administration:
Courts:
Clerk of the Circuit Court $ 698,452 % 710,574 § 709,742 832
Circuit court 100,295 102,044 108,748 {6,704)
District court 11,500 13,348 12,754 594
Magistrate 6,075 5,385 5,479 (94)
Victim's witness assistance 125,106 127,645 125,343 2,302
V- stop 39,136 39,992 39,719 273
Juvenule and domestic relations court 5,900 6,742 6,584 158
Total Courts 5 987,464 % 1,005,730 $ 1,008,369 $ (2,639)
Commenwealth's Attorney:
Commonwealth's attorney 3 1,097,791 & 1,138,176 $ 1,324,487 $ (185,311)
Total Judicial Administration $ 2,085,255 % 2,143,906 $ 2,332,856 $ (188.850)
Public Safety
Law Enforcement and Traffic Control:
Sheriff $ 3,457,098 § 3,570,056 % 3,512,232 § 57.824
DARE program 10,046 10,646 12,008 (1,362}
Total Law Enforcement and Traffic Control 8 3,467,141 § 3,580,702 & 3,624,240 $ 56,462
Fire and Rescue Services:
Volunteer fire departments $ 486,151 % 477,856 § 401,380 § 76,478
Volunteer rescue sguads 173,074 182,325 156,010 26,315
Total Fire and Rescue Services 3 659,225 % 660,181 % 557,390 $ 102,791
Correction and Detention:
Jail § 3,397,650 & 3,402,640 % 3,402,639 $ 4
Probation office 428,000 433,375 433,526 {150)
Youth and family services 2,420,250 2,420,250 2,069,877 350,373
Special police 189,193 241 488 237,660 3,828
Totat Carrection and Detention 3 6,435,133 § 56,497,754 & 6,143,702 3§ 354,052
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County of Tazewell, Virginia

Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 2
Page 2 of 4

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Eund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neq)
General Fund: {continued)
Public Safety (continued)
Other Protection:
Human services $ 418,820 § 418,820 397,680 $ 21,140
Emergency services 74 578 103,458 103,722 (264)
Animal control 122,510 125,874 118,527 7,347
Building inspection 158,043 168,159 168,448 (289)
Property maintenance 75,000 51,092 47,808 3,284
Forestry service 20,000 20,000 19,860 140
Total Other Protection [ 860,851 & 887,403 B56,045 § 31,358
Total Public Safety 5 11,431.450 % 11,625,040 11,081,377 % 544,663
Public Works:
Maintenance of Streets, Highways, and Bridges:
Orphan Road upgrading $ 261,504 8 255,933 54918 $ 201,015
Sanitation and Waste Removal:
Transfer station 3 676,094 § 820,302 827,603 $ {7,301}
Landfill 400,000 400,000 32,000 368,000
Confribution to PSA 174,922 174,922 174,922 -
Toetal Sanitation and Waste Removal 3 1,251,016 % 1,395,224 1.034,525 & 360,689
Maintenance of General Building and Grounds:
General properties 3 2,776,209 % 2,768,547 2,614,666 § 153,881
Fairgrounds operations 43,700 57,614 58,844 {1.230}
Total Maintenance of General Buildings and Grounds 3 2,819,908 % 2,826,161 2673510 % 152,651
Total Public Works b3 4,332,429 % 4,477 318 3,762,953 $ 714 365
Health and Welfare:
Health:
Supplement of Local Health Depariment $ 433,933 § 438,438 435,438 % -
Mental health and mental Retardation:
Chapter X board ;3 60,000 % 50,000 60,000 & -
Welfare:
Public Assistance 3 3,576,278 § 3,576,278 3,682,785 % {6,507)
Waelfare Administration 3,814,736 3,814,736 3,821,677 {6.941)
Total Welfare 3 7,391,014 % 7.381,014 7,404,462 % (13.448)
Totat Health and Welfare 3 7,884,947 % 7,889,452 7,902,900 $ (13.448)
Education:
Other instructional Costs:
Contribution o community colleges 3 860,000 § 80,000 60,000 % -
Contribution to Tazewall County School Board 12,182,812 12,182,812 11,673,844 508,968
Total Education % 12,242812 § 12,242,812 11,733,844 $ 508,968
Parks, Recreational and Cuttural-
Parks and Recreation:
Youth sports aclivities $ 40,500 $ 42,719 26,931 % 15,788
Tazewell recreation department 143,812 145,233 149,864 {4,631}
Museums 08,667 115,334 113,747 1,587
Total Parks and Recreation 5 282,979 § 303,286 290,542 § 12,744
Library:
Library Administration $ 955,675 $ 985,273 936,838 $ 48,434
Total Parks, Recreation and Cultural 3 1,238,654 § 1,288,559 1,227,381 $ 61,178
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County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neqg)
General Fund: (continued)
Community Development:
Planning and Community Development:
CGommunity Development $ 53,200 § 53,200 % 53,021 % 179
Tourism 84,217 85,118 80,740 4,376
Planning and engineering 362,479 386,348 277,791 108,557
Contribution to Airport 120,755 120,755 121,743 (988)
Confribution to iDA 44,036 44,036 44,038 -
Totat Planning and Community Development b1 664,687 § 659,455 % 577,331 % 112,124
Cooperative Extension Program:
VPI extension 3 101,949 3 101,948 B 100,716 3 1,233
Totat Community Development % 766,636 3 791,404 $ 678,047 % 113,357
Non-departmental:
District funds g 317,013 § 332,528 § 267,90t $ 64,627
Employee benefits 230,000 25,878 - 25,878
Contingent expenditures 700,000 622,694 282,711 339,983
Hospitalization - retirees 181,116 181,116 177,982 3,134
Total Non-departrrienial $ 1,428,129 § 1,162,216 $ 728,594 § 433,622
Debt Service:
Principal retirement $ -3 -3 764,330 $ {764,330)
Interest - - 469,109 {469,109}
Total Debt Service $ -8 - 5 1,233,439 5 (1,233,439)
Capital Projects:
Centingent expenditures $ 250,000 $ 8,000 § 8,000 8 -
Total General Fund 5 47,997,364 § 47,965,994 3 45,768,468 $ 2,197,506
Non-Major Special Revenua Funds:
Law Library Fund:
Judicial Adménistration:
Courts:
Law library $ 17,900 % 17,500 § 1,200 % 16,300
Coal Road Improverment Fund:
Public Works:
Maintenance of Highways, streets, bridges, and sidewalks 5 1,075,945 8 1,092,301 3 85,021 $ 1,007,280
Totat Public Works 3 1,075,945 3 1,002,301 § 85.021 & 1,007,280
Coal Road Economic Development Fund:
Public Works:
Economic development ] 500,000 % 500,000 % 544,290 § (44,290)
E-911 Fund:
Other Protection:
Public safety 5 2,966,672 3 2,874.047 8 1,448,007 % 1,526,040
Damage Stamp Fund:
Other Protection:
Animat control 3 -3 -3 143 § (143}
Total Non-major Special Revenue Funds 5 4,560,117 3 4583848 § 2,078,661 3 2,505,187
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Page 4 of 4
County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance with
Original Finat Final Budget-
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neg)
Major Capital Project Fund:
Caunty CIP Fund:
Public Works:
Contributions to the Public Service Authority $ 787,671 % 787,671 3% 78767t § -
Community Development:
Contributions to the Industrial Devetopment Authority 5 5,138,970 $ 5,138,970 § 5,081,952 § (842,982)
Total Community Development 5 5,138,970 § 5138970 % 5,951,952 § (842,982)
Capiial Projects:
County capifal project $ 500,000 $ 325,000 % 13,612 8 311,388
Cavits creek permit update 595,628 595,628 32,732 562,896
Courthouse parking 180,000 190,000 5,100 184,900
New garage 43,200 43,200 39,681 3,519
GOF incentives 142,500 142,500 - 142,500
TROF Incentives 400,000 400,000 - 400,000
Recreation authority 400,000 400,000 - 400,000
Courthouse HVAC 800,000 800,000 19,446 780,554
Sheriffs dept/911 remaodel - 175,000 114,284 60,716
Tctal Capital Projects g 3,071,328 § 3,071,328 § 224,855 % 2,846,473
Total County CIP Fund 8 8,997 969 $ 8,997,969 § 5,994478 % 2,003,491
Total Primary Government 3 61,555,450 § 61,547,811 § 54,841,627 $ 6,706,184
Discretely Presented Component Unit-Schoot Board:
Major Special Revenue Fund:
Schoot Operating Fund:
Education:
Administration of schools:
Administration, health and attendance $ 1,765,119 % 1,765,119 § 1,827,576 § (62,457)
Cafeteria operation 3,056,589 3,056,589 2,958,762 a7 827
Total Administration of school 3 4821708 4,821,708 $ 4,786,338 § 35370
Instructional:
Instruction $ 45,561,182 % 45,561,182 $ 43,050,411 % 2,510,771
Other operating costs
Pupil iransportation $ 3,621,387 $ 3,621,387 % 3,218,748 § 402,639
Operation and maintenance of school plant 5,628,499 5,528,499 4 967 064 561,435
Total other operating costs 3 9,149,886 $ 9,149,886 % 8,185,812 % 964,074
Tolai Education 3 59,532,776 % 59,532,776 % 56,022,561 % 3,510,215
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 3 1,938,449 $ 1,938,449 § 437,062 % 1,501,387
Interest and fiscal charges - - 189,114 (189,114)
Total Debt Service 3 1,938,442 $ 1,038449 § 626,176 $ 1,312,273
Capital Projects
Capital Outlay 5 - % -5 539,988 § (539,088}
Total Scheol Operating Fund $ 61,471,225 % 61,471,225 5 57,188,725 § 4,822,488
Total Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board $  61.471,225 § 61,471,225 § 57,188,725 § 4,822,488
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANLS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY NY

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Tazewell

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County of Tazewell, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively
comprise the County of Tazewell’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 30, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by
the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of Tazewell’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County of Tazewell’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of Tazewell’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internat control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings, responses, and questioned
costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
(reference 2011-1). A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Qther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Tazewell’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion

on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
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express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The County of Tazewell, Virginia's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the County of Tazewell in a separate
letter dated December 30, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervisors,

others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

FKabicmorn, Shemer, Ly thoociartea

Blacksburg, Virginia
December 30, 2011
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUINTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on internal Control Over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Tazewell

Compliance

We have audited the County of Tazewell’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the County of Tazewell’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.
The County of Tazewell’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the County of Tazewell’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the County of Tazewell’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County of Tazewell’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the County of Tazewell’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the County of Tazewell complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County of Tazewell is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of
Tazewell’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County of Tazewell’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timety
basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Supervisors,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Katicimoon, | Shener, Ly (haoeiatea

Blacksburg, Virginia
December 30, 2011
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Page1of 2

County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federat Pass-through Entity
Federal Grantor/State Pass-Through Grantor] CFDA dentifying Federal
Prograni or Cluster Fitle {Pass-Through Grantor's Number) Number Number Expenditures
Depariment of Health and Human Services:
Pass-through Payments:
Dapartment of Social Services:
Fremeoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 ©0249, 90359, 5 7,705
60360, 90361
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famifies (TANF) 93558 90109, 80110, 80111, 50112 816,513
90127, 90229, 90230, 90231
90232, §0247, 90365, 903566
90367, 80377, 90409, 90410
90411, 90412, 20601, 90603
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered Programs ©3.666 90113, 90233, 90413, 90713 1,026
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance §3.568 80114, 90115, 90234, 90235 39,436
Child Care and Development Fund Ciuster;
Child Care and Development Block Grant 83575 80544, 90545, 80547 112,975
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund §3.596 90116, 90117, 90118, 50119 135,678
90236, 90237, 90238, 50219
90378, 99540, 90517, 80529
ARRA- Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.713 80544, 20546, 90547 11,442
90236, 90237, 90238, 60239
90378, 90540, 90517, 90529
Chafee Eduaticn and Training Vouchers Program 93.899 90353 8,721
Child Welfare Services-Slate Grants 93.645 90251 2,436
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 90105, 90106, 80107, 80208 s 480 164
290225, 90226, S0227, 80253
90258, 90405, 90408, 90407
20638, 90637, 20639, 90641
90657, 90558, 80705, 90706
90707, 90733, 90738
ARRA - Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 S0636, 90637, 90639, 90658 22,504 512,668
Adoption Assistance 93 659 80108, 90214, 50228, 80408 $ 228,302
S0608, 80607, G0627, 90708
ARRA - Adoption Assistance 03.659 90608 15.508 243,898
Social Services Block Grant a3 667 90120, 50122, 90123, 80124 430,719
90125, 80128, 90240, 90242
96243, 80244, 90245, 90246
90262, 90314, 80335, 90338
80340, 90379
Chafee Foster Care Indepandence Program 93674 80254, 90356 21,260
Children's Health Insurance Program 03767 90102, 90222, 90402, 90702 15,212
Medicat Assislance Program 93778 20101, 90146, 80213, 90221 313,181
90266, 90401, 80446, 90701
90746
Total Gepartiment of Health and Human Services 5 2,472,240
Department of Agriculiure:
Pass-through Payments:
Departrment of Agriculture:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Food Distribution (Note 2) 16.555 40623 S 209,042
Department of Education:
Chitg Nutrition Cluster;
National School Lunch Program 10.555 1,321,169 % 1,530,211
Department of Agriculture:
Summer Fegsding Program 10.559 N7
Department of Education:
Child Nutntion Clustar:
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 40591 345,012
Scheols ant Roads - Grants to States 10.665 43841 13,456
Departmenl of Social Services:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nuirition Assislance Program 10561 50103, 50104, 90150, 90212, $ 535,891
90223, 90224, 80304, 90303
90403, 90404, 90507, 90703,
90704
ARRA - State Administrative Maiching Grants for the Supplementa! Nutrition Assistance Program 10561 90103, 90104, 90150, 90212, 9,879 § 545,770
90223, 90224, 90304, 20303
904063, 90404, 90507, 90703,
90704
Toetal Departmeant of Agriculture 5 2,434,766
Department of Homeland Security:
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Emergency Management:
Emergency Managemeni Performance Grants 97.042 52749 % 44,518
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 3,131
Public Safety interop Cormr ions Grant 11555 520827 355,083
Fotal Department of Homeland Security $ 402,712
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Page 2of 2

County of Tazewell, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 38, 2011

Federal Pass-through Entity
Federal Grantori/State Pass-Through Grantor! CFDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title (Pass-Through Grantor's Number) Number Number Expenditures
Department of Labor:
Waorkforce knvestment Act 17.258 53427 3 1,212,888
Depanment of Justice.
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Criminal Justice Services:
Crime Victim Assistance 16575 DIVAGX0007 s 70,461
Viclence Againsl Women Formuia Grants 18.968 QOWFAX0037 13,792
Total Department of Justice: 5 84,253
Depanment of Education:
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Education:
Tite i, Part A Cluster:
Title I: Grants to Local Educational Agencies 85.010 42892, 42901 $ 1,464,486
ARRA - Title |: Grants to Local Education Agencies 84.289 42913 741,762
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education - Grants o Siates 84.027 43071 4,308,893
ARRA - Special Education - Grants to States 84.291 61245 272,875
Career and Technical Education: Basic Grants to Statas 84.048 61035 179,702
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities - State Grants 84.186 85011 27,141
Reading First State Grants 64,357 &0885 99,059
Rural Education 84.258 164,448
Improving Teacher Quality - State Grants 84.367 61480 §92,678
ARRA - State Fiscat Stabifization Fund - Education Stale Grants 84,394 62532 4,330,800
Education Jobs Fund B4 410 395,128
Tota! Department of Education 5 6.868.073
Tetal Expenditures of Federal Awards 3 13.474.932

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule} includes the federal grant aclivity of the County of Tazewell, Virginia under programs of the federat government for the
year ended June 30, 2011. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Slates, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit

Organizations. Because the Schedule prasents only a selectad portion of the operations of the County of Tazewell, Virginia, # is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of tha County of Tazewall, Virginia.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{1) Expenditures reparied on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.. Such expenditures are recognized foliowing the cost principles contained in
OMB A-87, Cast Prnciplas for State, Local, and Indiar Tribai Govemments, wherein certain types of expanditures are not allowable or are limited as 1o reimbursement.
(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Note 3 -- Food Distribution
Nommaongtary assistance is reported in the schedule al the fair market value of commaodities recaived and disbursed. At June 30, 2010, the County had ne feod
commoedities in inventary.

Note 4 - Relationship to the Financial Statements.
Federat expenditures, revenues and capital contributions are reported in the County's basic financial statements as follows:
Intergovermmental federal revenues per the basic financial statements:
Primary Govarnment:

General Fund lowal $ 4,372,551
Less: Payment in fisu of taxes {9,751}
E911 Fund 355,063
Total Primary Government % 4,717.863
Component Unit Schoais:
School Operating Fund totat 5 8,757,069
Total federal expenditures per basic financial statemants g 13,474,032
Taotal federal expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards H 13,474,932
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County of Tazewell, Virginia

Schedule of Findings, Responses and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Page 1 of 2

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

interal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency{ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiency({ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510 (a}?

Identification of major programs:

Unqualified

No

Yes

No

No

None reported

Unqualified

No

CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.010/84.389
84.027/84.391

Title |, Part A Cluster
Special Education Cluster

84.394 ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Education State Grants

93.575/93.596/93.713

Child Care Cluster

93.667 Social Services Block Grant

93.658 Foster Care/ARRA Foster Care

93.659 Adoption Assistancef ARRA Adoption Assistance
17.258 Worlkforce Investment Act

84.410

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Education Jobs Fund

$404,248

No
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Page 2 of 2
County of Tazewell, Virginia

Schedule of Findings, Responses and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

20111
Criteria;
Per Statement on Auditing Standards 115, an auditee should have sufficient expertise in the selection
and application of accounting principles used in the preparation of the annual financial report. In
addition, the auditee should have sufficient internal controls over the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Furthermore, reliance on
the auditors to correct erors in the County's financial report is not a component of internal controls.
Condition: The School Board's capital asset listing required significant adjustments by the auditors. In addition,
the listing should be reviewed annually for retired assets and assets that fall below the School Board's
capitalization threshold.
Cause of Condition: The County has historically relied on the auditors for assistance in preparing the financial statements
and related adjustments.
Effect: There is more than a remote likefihocd that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not
be prevented or detected by the entity's internal controls over financial reporting.
Management should continue to implement and follow review procedures in order to make adjustments
Recommendation: in a timefy manner.
Management's
Response: Management is dedicated to complying with the concepts set forth in the Statement on Auditing

Standards 115 and has taken steps to correct the capital asset listing for future years and ensure that
all significant adjustments are made prior to the audit,

Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
There are no federal award findings and questioned costs to report.
Section IV - Status of Prior Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2010-1 from prior year's Schedule of Findings, Responses, and Questioned Costs is recurring.
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